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Dear valued shareholders and stakeholders,  

Year 2020 is a stormy year of the world under impact of COVID-19 pandemic, causing more than 

1.8 million deaths, many economies closed, global supply chain disrupted, production stagnated 

and unemployment increased. In such extremely difficult situation, Vietnam has become a spot light 

when both successfully controlling the pandemic and promoting economic growth, enhancing the 

country's prestige and position in international arena. In 2020, GDP growth rate of Vietnam reached 

2.91%, become one of the fastest growing economies over the world thanks to promoting public 

investment (+34.5%YoY) and exporting (+6.5%YoY). The economy continue to maintain the 

stability with inflation under control at 3.23%, lower than 4% target set by the government. The 

exchange rate was less volatile supported by high record of trade surplus at USD 19.1 billion and 

disbursed FDI was quite equivalent to 2019, reaching USD 20 billion. 

The stock market had a synchronous movement with the economy when recovering as “V shape” 

pattern. At the end of 2020, VN-Index closed at 1,103.87 points, 15% higher than the end of 2019 

but nearly 70% higher than the bottom creating at the end of March 2020, and was fueled by “cheap” 

investment flows when operating interest rates were cut to unprecedented low level. Notably, the 

stock market in 2020 welcomed 392 thousand new trading accounts, double those number of last 

year. Trading values had a sudden increase in the last three months of the year, bringing average 

trading value of 2020 to VND 6,938 billion/day, increased 60% compared to the average number of 

2019. The derivative market also made great stride with 39.9 million contracts being made in 2020, 

equivalent to an average of about 158 thousand contracts per day, almost double the average 

number in 2018 and 2019. Open interest (OI) at the end of December 2020 reached more than 40 

thousand contracts, sharply increased from 16.6 thousand contracts at the end of 2019. 

In recognition of the exceptionally challenging business environment, we have been appropriately 

flexible and pragmatic to facilitate PHS has accomplished its best performance under challenging 

caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. I am happy to inform you that the leadership and the team 

have achieved revenues in the year under review that are historically the best ever. The Company 

recorded a total revenue of VND 216,281 million and net profit of VND 52,843 million, representing 

a significant increase as compared to 2019 and PHS also paid cash dividend of 3.3% per share to 
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our Shareholders. I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our 

shareholders and stakeholders for the support given to PHS for a successful year. 

In today’s rapidly changing environment, the importance of robust infrastructure cannot be 

overstated. We also make use of advanced data analytics to help us track fast-moving markets and 

enhance our surveillance capabilities. We embrace the benefits of innovative technology, regularly 

update our rulebooks to stay ahead of new technologies. PHS provide not only high-tech trading 

system but also apply the digital transformation to operating business to take advantage of the 

opportunities and efficiencies of innovation. 

The company will continue to uphold our longstanding tradition of adhering to exemplary 

sustainability management and continue to adhere to all our corporate ethical codes and standards. 

PHS will create a healthy and vibrant organizational culture that enables our talented employees to 

realize their full potential. In addition, PHS will consistently commit to creating a trustworthy financial 

environment where all customers can trade with confidence.  

The company will continue to innovate itself to create shared values and devote to building a co-

existing society. PHS will continue to create shared value so it can contribute to building a society 

that places the highest importance on the values of caring, sharing and mutual growth. 

Over the past year, we have faced a profound crisis – not one that we created, nor one that we can 

solve alone – but a crisis we have faced up to nonetheless with courage, conviction, and resilience. 

I remain optimistic about what lies ahead, and I believe we can all be confident in our future.  

 

As we look ahead to 2021, the Board is optimistic that PHS will emerge from this pandemic stronger 

than it was before. On behalf of the Board, I would like to recognize Board of Directors, Board of 

Management and every one of its employees, who have worked day and night to ensure that PHS’s 

customers and communities are better prepared to weather the challenges posed by COVID-19. 

Finally, I would like to thank you – our shareholders – for your continued confidence as PHS 

manages through this challenging period. 



COMPANY INFORMATION
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District 1 Branch

Headquarters

Phu My Hung
Trading O�ce

Tan Binh Branch

Room 1003A, 10th Floor, Ruby Building,81-83-83B-85 Ham Nghi, 
Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District 1, HCMC
Phone: (84 24) 3933 4560
Fax: (84 24) 3933 4820  

3rd Floor, CR3-03A, 109 Ton Dat Tien Street, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, HCM City, Vietnam.
Tel: (84 28) 5413 5479  
Fax: (84 28) 5413 5472
Email: support@phs.vn

Ground Floor, CR2-08, 107 Ton Dat Tien Street, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City
Phone: (84 28) 5413 5478
Fax: (84 28) 5413 5473

E-Town 2 Building, Room G.4A, 364 Cong Hoa Street, Ward 13, Tan Binh District,
Ho Chi Minh City
Phone: (84 28) 3813 2401
Fax: (84 28) 3813 2415

Phuong Nam Building, 2nd Floor, 157 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ward 6, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
Phone: (84 28) 3820 8068
Fax: (84 28) 3820 8206 

District 3 Branch

Hanoi Branch 5th Floor, Vinafor Building, No.127 Lo Duc,Dong Mac Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi
Phone: (84-24) 3 933 4566
Fax: (84 24) 3933 4820  

Hai Phong Branch Eliteco Building, 2nd Floor, 18 Tran Hung Dao Street, Hong Bang District, Hai Phong
Phone: (84 225) 384 1810
Fax: (84 225) 384 1801 

Thanh Xuan Branch 5th Floor, UDIC Complex Building, N04 Hoang Dao Thuy Street, Trung Hoa Ward, 
Cau Giay District, Ha Noi
Phone: (84 24) 6250 9999
Fax: (84 24) 6250 6666
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2020 
HIGHLIGHTS 
         
Units: 
VND million, unless otherwise noted 2017  2018 2019  2020  

Changes 
2020/2019 

         
BUSINESS RESULTS         

Revenue 
                 

130,033   
                   

175,584  
                   

201,793   
                   

216,281   7.2% 

Brokerage 
                    

41,793   
                      

51,453  
                      

50,211   
                      

65,884   31.2% 

Investments 
                      

1,181   
                        

1,625  
                        

1,523   
                        

3,976   161.0% 

Advisory 
                         

270   
                           

250  
                           

935   
                           

241   -74.2% 

Other 
                    

86,790   
                   

122,255  
                   

149,124   
                   

146,180   -2.0% 

Expenses                  
112,707   

                   
138,134  

                   
143,988   

                   
150,566   4.6% 

Pro�t before tax 
                    

17,326   
                      

37,450  
                      

57,805   
                      

65,715   13.7% 

Pro�t after tax 
                    

17,326   
                      

37,450  
                      

47,522   
                      

52,843   11.2% 

ROE                         
0.04   

                          
0.06  

                          
0.06   

                          
0.06   

                              
- 

ROA 
                        

0.02   
                          

0.03  
                          

0.03   
                          

0.03   
                              

- 
         

ASSETS         

Total assets 
              

1,152,907   
                

1,512,416  
                

1,676,834   
                

2,135,100   27.3% 

Charter capital 
                 

320,000   
                   

700,000  
                   

700,000   
                   

900,000   28.6% 

Equity 
                 

508,414   
                   

745,864  
                   

770,285   
                   

993,429   29.0% 

Gross leverage ratio 
                        

2.27  
                          

2.03  
                          

2.18  
                          

2.15  

Debt / Equity ratio 
                        

1.27   
                          

1.03  
                          

1.18   
                          

1.15     
Liquid capital ratio 567%  783% 852%  863%    
         
PER SHARE METRICS         

Basic earnings per share (VND) 
                         

537   
                           

729  
                           

679   
                           

603   -11.19% 
Weighted average number of ordinary 
shares 

            
32,246,085   

              
51,395,265  

              
69,999,510   

              
87,704,428   25.29% 

Dividend/share (VND) 
                             

-     
                           

330  
                           

330   
                               

-       
         

TOTAL EMPLOYEES (PEOPLE) 
                         

177   
                           

213  
                           

198   
                           

236     
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Revenue

216
 VND billion

993
VND billion

3,976
VND million

900
VND billion

TOTAL EMPLOYEES NATIONALITIES

ASSETS

2.135
 VND billion

65,884
VND million

Securities
Brokerage Investments

Charter
capital Equity 

236 2
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CORE VALUE

INNOVATION

SUBSTANCE

EFFICIENCYSIMPLICITY

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
AND INNOVATION

HONESTY, 

 
RESPONSIBILITY

PROMPTITUDE, 
EFFECTIVENESS

BEING CONCISE AND 
COMPREHENSIVE

 

 

PHS always considers Customers’ benefit as core values that we need to continuously 
improve and prioritize. These values are reflected through essential principles in PHS’s 
operation as follows
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Vietnam securities market has been developing continuously with 
the outstanding growth of domestic economy. With strong financial 
competency, clear business strategy, and constant effort of all employees, 
PHS is always confident to appreciate concurrently with Vietnam market 
since its establishment.

Phu Hung Securities Corporation (PHS), being established 
in 2006, is a leading foreign securities company in 

investment services to domestic and international 
customers including individuals, institutional investors, 
funds, insurance companies, and banks.

From 2008, welcoming CX Technology as strategic 
shareholder – a listed company in Taiwan which is the 
leading supplier in cold forging and plastic injection 
components and parts, PHS continues to reinforce a 

securities business including

SECURITIES BROKERAGE FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 
ADVISORY

DEPOSITORY

 

DEALING UNDERWRITING

LINES AND LOCATION
OF THE BUSINESS

Vietnam securities market has been developing continuously with 
the outstanding growth of domestic economy. With strong financial 
competency, clear business strategy, and constant effort of all employees, 
PHS is always confident to appreciate concurrently with Vietnam market 
since its establishment.

Phu Hung Securities Corporation (PHS), being established 
in 2006, is a leading foreign securities company in 

investment services to domestic and international 
customers including individuals, institutional investors, 
funds, insurance companies, and banks.

From 2008, welcoming CX Technology as strategic 
shareholder – a listed company in Taiwan which is the 
leading supplier in cold forging and plastic injection 
components and parts, PHS continues to reinforce a 

securities business including

SECURITIES BROKERAGE FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 
ADVISORY

DEPOSITORY

 

DEALING UNDERWRITING

LINES AND LOCATION
OF THE BUSINESS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

DERIVATIVE
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LOCATION OF THE BUSINESS

 
 
 

 

PHS has a business network covering 
most of the main cities in Vietnam 
including Hanoi, Ho Chi Minh City, 

and Hai Phong.
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2nd

Tan Binh Branch
Ground Floor, P. G.4A, E-Town 2 Building, 
364 Cong Hoa Street, Ward 13, Tan Binh District, HCM City

(84-28) 3 813 2401; (84-28) 3 813 2415

District 3 Branch
 Floor, Phuong Nam Building, 

157 Vo Thi Sau Street, District 3, HCM City
(84-28) 3 820 8068; (84-28) 3 820 8206

HO CHI MINH CITY

 

3
rd
 Floor, CR3-03A Building, 109 Ton Dat Tien 

Street, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, HCM City
(84-28) 5 413 5479 
(84-28) 5 413 5472
(84-28) 5 411 8855 
info@phs.vn / support@phs.vn

Call Center (to place order): (84-28) 5 413 5488
Website: www.phs.vn

HEAD OFFICE

Thanh Xuan Branch
5st Floor, UDIC Complex Building,TN04 Hoang Dao Thuy,  
Trung Hoa Ward Cau Giay Dist., Hanoi.

(84-24) 6250 9999

Hanoi Branch
5th Floor, Vinafor Building, No.127 Lo Duc,
Dong Mac Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi

(84-24) 3 933 4566; (84-24) 3 933 4820

HANOI

2
nd

Hai Phong Branch
 Floor, Eliteco Building, 

18 Tran Hung Dao Street, Hong Bang District, Hai Phong
(84-225) 384 1810; (84-225) 384 1801

HAI PHONG

CR2-08 Building, 
107 Ton Dat Tien Street, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, HCM City

(84-28) 5 413 5478; (84-28) 5 413 5473

District 1 Branch
Room 1003A, 10th Floor, Ruby Building,
81-83-83B-85 Ham Nghi, Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District 1, HCM City

(84-28) 3 535 6060; 84-28) 3 535 2912
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GOVERNANCE MODEL
GENERAL

MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR

GENERAL DIRECTOR

INSPECTION  COMMITTEE

INTERNAL AUDIT

INTERNAL CONTROL

 
 BROKERAGE

 
 RESEARCH

 
 ADVISORY

 
 DEALING

 
 INFO

TECHNOLOGY

 
 LEGAL

ĐẠI HỘI ĐỒNG CỔ ĐÔNG
Shareholders Assembly

HỘI ĐỒNG QUẢN TRỊ
Board of Director

TỔNG GIÁM ĐỐC
General Director

BAN KIỂM SOÁT
Board of Supervisors

KIỂM TOÁN NỘI BỘ
Internal Audit

KIỂM SOÁT NỘI BỘ
Internal Control

 
 

KHỐI
MÔI GIỚI
Brokerage

 
 

PHÒNG
PHÂN TÍCH

Research

 
 

PHÒNG
TƯ VẤN
Advisory

 
 

PHÒNG
TỰ DOANH

Dealing

 
 

KHỐI
CÔNG NGHỆ
THÔNG TIN

Info Technology

 
 

PHÒNG
PHÁP LÝ

Legal

 
 

DỊCH VỤ
KHÁC

Sale Service

 
 

HỆ THỐNG
System

 
 PHẦN MỀM

Software
 

 
PHẦN CỨNG

Hardware
 

 

CÁC

PHÒNG
GIAO DỊCH
Branches/T.O.

 
 

PHÒNG
HỖ TRỢ

MÔI GIỚI
Brokerage

Management

 
 

DỰ ÁN
SẢN PHẨM

Group products
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BAN THƯ KÝ
Company Secretariat

HỘI ĐỒNG QUẢN LÝ RỦI RO
Risk Management Committee

PHÓ TỔNG GIÁM ĐỐC
Deputy General Director

 
 

PHÒNG
NHÂN SỰ

Human Resources

 
 

PHÒNG
HÀNH CHÍNH

General Affair

 
 

PHÒNG
TÀI CHÍNH

Finance

 
 

PHÒNG
KẾ TOÁN
Accounting

 
 

KHỐI
HỖ TRỢ

GIAO DỊCH
Trading service

 
 

PHÒNG
QUẢN LÝ

RỦI RO
Risk Management

 
 

GIAO DỊCH
KÝ QUỸ

Margin

 
 

HỖ TRỢ
GIAO DỊCH

TẠI CHI NHÁNH
Branch Teller

 
 

LƯU KÝ
Depository

COMPANY SECRETARIAT

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR

 
 HUMAN 

RESOURCES

 
 GENERAL 

AFFAIR

 
 FINANCE

 
 ACCOUNTING

 
 TRADING

SERVICE

 
 RISK

MANAGEMENT
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GOVERNANCE MODEL

Company Secretariat

Risk Management
 Committee

General Meeting of
 Shareholders

Board of Director
Inspection Committee

BAN THƯ KÝ
Company Secretariat

Internal Audit
HỘI ĐỒNG QUẢN LÝ RỦI RO

Risk Management Committee

PHÓ TỔNG GIÁM ĐỐC
Deputy General Director

 
 

PHÒNG
NHÂN SỰ

Human Resources

 
 

PHÒNG
HÀNH CHÍNH

General Affair

 
 

PHÒNG
TÀI CHÍNH

Finance

 
 

PHÒNG
KẾ TOÁN
Accounting

HỖ TRỢ
GIAO DỊCH

Trading service

 
 

GIAO DỊCH
KÝ QUỸ

Margin

HỖ TRỢ
GIAO DỊCH

TẠI CHI NHÁNH
Branch Teller

The General Mee�ng of Shareholders is the highest authority of the Company. The General Mee�ng of 
Shareholders elects the Inspec�on Commi�ee and Board of Directors to help shareholders manage the 
Company. The Inspec�on Commi�ee helps supervise the management and opera�on of the Board of 
Directors and the Board of Management. Board of Directors decides to all ma�ers rela�ng to the 
Company’s ac�vi�es, except for ma�ers which belongs to the authority of General Mee�ng of 
Shareholders. Internal Audit and Risk Management Commi�ee are the directly subordinate agencies of 
Board of Directors, Company Secretariat is in charge of administra�ve works in support to Board of 
Directors. 
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

SUBSIDIARIES, 
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES: N/A

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deputy General 
Director  

General 
Director 

Internal 
Control  

Risk 
Management 

Trading 
Services Finance Accounting Brokerage Dealing Research Advisory HR Legal General 

Affairs IT 

PHS builds the execu�ve apparatus under the leadership and responsibility of the Board of Directors. 
General Director is the first rank of the execu�ve apparatus, directly guide the management of division in 
the Company. 

The Deputy General Director assists the General Director in opera�ng the Finance Division, Accoun�ng 
Division, Trading Service Division and Risk Management Division. Internal Control Division assists the 
General Director in verifying compliance with procedures in daily opera�ons. 

Other divisions include: Brokerage Division, Advisory Division, Research Division, Dealing Division, General 
Affairs Division, Human Resources Division, Informa�on Technology Division and Legal Division. 

 HỖ TRỢ
GIAO DỊCH

Trading service

 
 

PHÒNG
QUẢN LÝ

RỦI RO
Risk Management

 

HỖ TRỢ
GIAO DỊCH

TẠI CHI NHÁNH
Branch Teller

 
 

LƯU KÝ
Depository
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RISKS

 PAYMENT RISKS
Occur in case PHS’s counterparties unable 
to make payment on time or failure to 
transfer assets on time as undertaken;

LEGAL RISKS 
Mean risks that arise from the non-compliance 
towards legal provisions relating to business 
activities, and from the cancellation of contract 
because the contract is illegal, or falls beyond 
authorization, or lacked terms, or does not 
qualify the standards, or due to other reasons.

The risk management policy of the Company is set up to detect and analyze the risks faced by 
the Company, provide the limits and risk control measures accordingly, observe the risks and 
comply with the limit. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to re�ect 
changes in market conditions and the Company's operations. The Company through 
standards, management and training process aimed to develop a disciplined, constructive and 
controlled environment in which all employees understand their roles and responsibilities.

MARKET RISKS 
De�nes the negative impacts 
through changing the assets 
value under phs’s ownership;

OPERATIONAL RISKS
Occur due to technical errors, system and 
professional procedures errors, human 
errors during the operation, or capital 
insu�ciency for business operations 
arising from costs, losses on investment 
activities, or other objective reasons;

LIQUIDITY RISKS
Occur in case PHS is unable to make 
the payment for �nancial liabilities;
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PROFIT AFTER TAX

40,157 billion, brokerage fee revenue reached

 

II. YEARLY OPERATIONS 
 
 
 
 

Phu Hung Securities Corporation – 2020 Annual Report    

 

CHARTER CAPITAL 

25

7.2% 11.2%
Revenue Net income



2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0

PROFIT BEFORE TAX              PROFIT AFTER TAX

II – OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

We currently provide ongoing coverage of 
55 listed Vietnamese companies that 
qualify either on liquidity, their 
importance to the economy of Vietnam or 
are viewed as high growth prospects. 
Stocks under active coverage get in-depth 
update reports published at least once 
every quarter. 

RESEARCH
AND ANALYSIS 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Revenue of VND313bn

36%

The principal investment segment closed 
2018 with revenue of VND313bn, down 
36% YoY. This contraction is a reflection of 
the weaker year-end close of the VN-Index 
at 892.5 points, down 9.3% YoY. The 
downtrend in the Vietnamese stock market 
can be mainly explained by external factors 
rather than internal factors. 
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REVENUE



2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0

PROFIT BEFORE TAX              

 

INVESTMENTS 

During 2018, we also published recommendations on 21 
small and mid-cap companies.

VCSC invests in VCSC’s advisory clients, creating an 
e�ective investment portfolio. 

The investment strategy is centered on growth 
businesses that are about to list. 

Since being founded, VCSC has always sought 
opportunities to invest in good and promising companies 
in industries that can capitalize on Vietnam’s population 
of more than 90 million people. 

With a leading position in investment banking, VCSC can 
work closely with our advisory clients and therefore has 
many opportunities to engage in value-added 
investments. 

Revenue of VND313bn

36%

The principal investment segment closed 
2018 with revenue of VND313bn, down 
36% YoY. This contraction is a reflection of 
the weaker year-end close of the VN-Index 
at 892.5 points, down 9.3% YoY. The 
downtrend in the Vietnamese stock market 
can be mainly explained by external factors 
rather than internal factors. 

AND ANALYSIS 
INVESTMENTS 

During 2018, we also published recommendations on 21 
small and mid-cap companies.

VCSC invests in VCSC’s advisory clients, creating an 
e�ective investment portfolio. 

The investment strategy is centered on growth 
businesses that are about to list. 

Since being founded, VCSC has always sought 
opportunities to invest in good and promising companies 
in industries that can capitalize on Vietnam’s population 
of more than 90 million people. 

With a leading position in investment banking, VCSC can 
work closely with our advisory clients and therefore has 
many opportunities to engage in value-added 
investments. 

Revenue of VND313bn

36%

The principal investment segment closed 
2018 with revenue of VND313bn, down 
36% YoY. This contraction is a reflection of 
the weaker year-end close of the VN-Index 
at 892.5 points, down 9.3% YoY. The 
downtrend in the Vietnamese stock market 
can be mainly explained by external factors 
rather than internal factors. 
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Revenue of VND313bn

36%

The principal investment segment closed 
2018 with revenue of VND313bn, down 
36% YoY. This contraction is a reflection of 
the weaker year-end close of the VN-Index 
at 892.5 points, down 9.3% YoY. The 
downtrend in the Vietnamese stock market 
can be mainly explained by external factors 
rather than internal factors. 

II – OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

We currently provide ongoing coverage of 
55 listed Vietnamese companies that 
qualify either on liquidity, their 
importance to the economy of Vietnam or 
are viewed as high growth prospects. 
Stocks under active coverage get in-depth 
update reports published at least once 
every quarter. 

RESEARCH
AND ANALYSIS 

ORGANIZATION AND
 HUMAN RESOURCES

LIST OF THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Chen Chia Ken 
Position: General Director
Year of birth: 1971  
Quali�cation: Master’s degree
Number of shares own: 0 share

Mrs. Pham Thi Thu Nhan
Position: Deputy General Director
Year of birth: 1984
Quali�cation: Bachelor’s degree
Number of shares own: 0 share

Mrs. Do Thi Ai Vy
Position: Chief Accountant
Year of birth: 1986 
Quali�cation: Bachelor’s degree
Number of shares own: 0 share
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III. REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT TEAM 
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DEBT OBLIGATIONS

As of December 31, 2020, the balance of short-term and long-term loans was as follows:

The balance of short-term and long-term loans Unit: VND million Unit: VND million
31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020

Loans 708,217        1,175,168        1,152,506                1,526,116              
Short-term loans 708,217          1,175,168          1,152,506                  1,526,116                
Long-term loans 0 0 0 0
Total 708,217        1,175,168        1,152,506                1,526,116              

PAYABLES AS RELATED TO THE STATE

:swollof sa si 0202 ,13 rebmeceD fo sa etatS eht ot selbayap xat fo ecnalab ehT
 .snoitaluger tnerruc htiw ecnadrocca ni snoitagilbo sti slluf yltcirts ynapmoc ehT

Payables to the State Unit: VND million Unit: VND million
31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020

Value added tax 2                                                   5                                     3                                   3 
Corporate income tax -                   -                                                  3,249                          4,084 
Personal income tax 1,368               1,275                                              1,608                          3,694 
Foreign contractor  withholding tax 0 -                                                        16                                28 
Total 1,371             1,280                  4,876                         7,809                       

RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES
A. RECEIVABLES
Receivables Unit: VND million Unit: VND million

31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
Interest receivables from �nancial assets 15,979                             32,398                          20,294                        21,522 
Prepayments to suppliers 434                  1,151                   906                              1,147                        
Receivables from services rendered 25,888            15,727                14,855                        1,586                        
Other receivables 12,802            12,936                12,909                        12,927                      
Other receivables provision (9,470)             (9,290)                  (9,326)                         (9,186)                       
Total 45,633           52,922               39,637                       27,996                    

B. PAYABLES
Payables Unit: VND million Unit: VND million

31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
Short-term payables 644152.3483              766,188                      906,211                1,140,360 
Long-term payables 340.4375                        365                               337                         1,312 
Total 644,493        766,552            906,548                    1,141,671              

FINANCIAL SAFETY RATIOS
Financial safety ratios report 2017, 2018 and 2019, 2020 Unit: VND million Unit: VND million

Risk / Liquid capitalRisk / Liquid capitalRisk / Liquid capital Risk / Liquid capital
Items 31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
Total market risk value 510                  275                      405                              13,886                      
Total settlement risk value 28,474            34,389                28,599                        45,990                      
Total operational risk value 60,000            60,000                60,000                        50,000                      
Total risk values 88,985            94,664                89,004                        109,876                   
Liquid capital 504,606          740,875              758,447                      948,638                   
Liquid capital ratio 567% 783% 852% 863%

Per Circular No. 87/2017/TT-BTC
 of the Ministry of Finance dated August 15, 2017, securities companies must maintain a Liquid capital ratio (LCR)
 of at least 180%. PHS always maintains a very high LCR, ensuring the �nancial safety of the company
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KEY FINANCIAL METRICS

Items Unit 2017 2018 2019 2020

Current ratio = Short term Asset/Short term debt 1.77 1.95                             1.82                           1.82                         

Capital structure Ratio

Debt/Total assets ratio % 56% 51% 54% 53%

% 127% 103% 118% 115%

Net revenue/ Total Assets % 11% 12% 12% 10%

Target on Pro�tability

Pro�t after tax/ Net revenue Ratio % 13% 21% 24% 24%

Pro�t after tax/ total capital Ratio (ROE) % 4% 6% 6% 5%

Pro�t after tax/ Total assets Ratio (ROA) % 2% 3% 3% 2%

Basic earnings per share VND 537 729 679 603

Solvency ratio: PHS's current solvency ratios over the years are greater than 1, showing that the 
level of safety in meeting the demand for payment of short-term debts of the company is 
relatively good. .

lower than the 300% limit applied to securities companies.

Pro�tability ratios: Pro�tability ratios of the Company such as pro�t after tax / Net revenue 
increased steadily over the years, showing a signi�cant improvement in the business 
performance of the Company. PHS.

38



Phu Hung Securities Corporation – 2020 Annual Report    

 

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

 1,800

 2,000

2017 2018 2019 2020

MARGIN OUTSTANDING

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

2017 2018 2019 2020

BROKERAGE INCOME

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

 100

 120

 140

2017 2018 2019 2020

MARGIN INCOME

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

2017 2018 2019 2020

PROFIT AFTER TAX

 

 

 

39



Phu Hung Securities Corporation – 2020 Annual Report    

 40



Phu Hung Securities Corporation – 2020 Annual Report    

 41



 

Phu Hung Securities Corporation – 2020 Annual Report    

 42



 

 

 

 

 

 

07%

08%

09% 09%

11%

46

II – ĐÁNH GIÁ HOẠT ĐỘNG VÀ TÀI CHÍNH

MÔI GIỚI TRONG NƯỚC (LB)

MÔI GIỚI CHỨNG KHOÁN

VCSC là 1 trong 3 công ty dẫn đầu về 
thị phần môi giới trên HSX.

“ “

TỔNG THỊ PHẦN MÔI GIỚI  CỦA VCSC TRÊN HSX
(%)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Nguồn: HSX, VCSC

Tư vấn đầu tư được xác định là nhiệm 
vụ quan trọng nhất của LB trong việc 
nâng cao chất lượng hoạt động môi 
giới  cũng như VCSC đang hướng đến 
những khách hàng  có chiến lược đầu 
tư ổn định lâu dài và mức sinh lợi hiệu 
quả thể hiện qua:

•   Phòng LB cung cấp dịch vụ tư vấn 
đầu tư chuyên sâu và toàn diện với 
sự trợ giúp của phòng Nghiên cứu & 
Phân tích, hỗ trợ các nhà đầu tư đưa 
ra các quyết định đầu tư hợp lý và 
hiệu quả.

•   Phòng LB liên tục cải tiến hiệu quả 
hoạt động cũng như hỗ trợ các nhà 
đầu tư trong việc tương tác trực 
tuyến như V-Pro, V-Web và V-Mobile; 
Hỗ trợ DMA và STP để đảm bảo sự 
nhanh chóng, tiện lợi và bảo mật 
thông tin.

Số lượng khách hàng cá nhân của VCSC 
tăng dần qua các năm và là thị trường 
trọng tâm quan trọng vì khối lượng giao 
dịch của khách hàng cá nhân chiếm 84,8% 
tổng giao dịch toàn thị trường trong năm 
2018. VCSC đạt tổng thị phần môi giới trên 
sàn HSX là 11,0% trong năm 2018, tiếp tục 
duy trì vị trí top ba công ty hàng đầu. LB 
chiếm 50% tổng doanh thu môi giới của 
VCSC trong năm 2018. VCSC nhắm tới 
nhóm khách hàng mục tiêu là những 
người có thu nhập cao và chiến lược đầu 
tư dài hạn, ổn định.

Phòng LB cung cấp gói đầy đủ các dịch vụ 
môi giới cho khách hàng cá nhân trong 
nước và hiện tại có hơn 39.600 tài khoản 
hoạt động thường xuyên (tính đến ngày 
31 tháng 12 năm 2018). Các dịch vụ cung 
cấp bao gồm môi giới, lưu ký chứng 
khoán, quản lý cổ đông và cho vay ký quỹ, 
được cung cấp bởi một đội ngũ gồm 112 
chuyên viên có kinh nghiệm, có kiến thức 
và tận tâm. 

  tài khoản mở
39.600

chuyên viên
112

VCSC theo đuổi chính sách thận trọng khi mà: tỷ lệ nợ trên vốn chủ sở 
hữu là 0,79 lần trong năm 2018 (so với 1,12 lần trong năm 2017), thấp 
hơn đáng kể so với giới hạn quy định là 3 lần.

Doanh thu môi giới, bao gồm cả ISB và LB, đã tăng 104% Y-o-Y 
trong năm 2018.

Doanh thu môi giới
-

TOP 3 thị phần trên HSX

84,8%
50%
LB

Giao dịch
khách hàng cá nhân 104%
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2.91 %
still climbed to

BÁO CÁO THƯỜNG NIÊN 2018
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NGHIÊN CỨU
VÀ PHÂN TÍCH

Trong những năm qua, Bộ phận Nghiên 
cứu và Phân tích của VCSC đã có nhiều 
bước tiến vượt bậc cả về số lượng và chất 
lượng, toàn đội ngũ cùng nhau nỗ lực đưa 
ra các khuyến nghị chuyên sâu, hợp lý, 
bắt kịp xu hướng và tâm lý đầu tư vào thị 
trường Việt Nam.

Bộ phận Nghiên cứu và Phân tích được cơ 
cấu thành nhiều nhóm chuyên viên phân 
tích, phần lớn là các nhân sự trẻ hoạt bát 
làm việc dưới sự dẫn dắt của một trưởng 
phòng dày dặn kinh nghiệm, mỗi nhóm sẽ 
chịu trách nhiệm cho một lĩnh vực cụ thể, 
điều này cho phép chuyên viên phân tích dễ 
dàng hiểu sâu hơn về các ngành họ đang 
nghiên cứu, được hướng dẫn và truyền thụ 
kinh nghiệm trực tiếp từ các trưởng phòng. 
Theo yêu cầu công việc, chuyên viên phân 
tích phải trình bày tất cả khuyến nghị thông 
qua công cụ webinar, trực tiếp gặp gỡ khách 
hàng tổ chức và tổ chức hội thảo cho các 

chuyên viên môi giới khách hàng cá nhân nhằm mục đích truyền 
đạt hiệu quả các khuyến nghị của VCSC, đồng thời hiểu thêm về 
nhu cầu của khách hàng. Ngoài ra, công ty còn khuyến khích và hỗ 
trợ cho các chuyên viên phân tích tham gia các khóa học chuyên 
môn, ví dụ như CFA.

“

“
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IV. ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY’S OPERATION 
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Successful projects require careful planning, communica�on and management of a wide range of 
products, services and stakeholders. PHS believe the key to transforma�on is either in modernizing our 
applica�ons, re-architec�ng their infrastructure or op�mizing their opera�ons to keep up with the pace 
of today’s business. In 2021, PHS will host of new technologies into internal management system, trading 
system to improve our business performance. 
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In accordance with our Company Charter and internal procedures & policies, the Board of Directors delegates 
Board of Management to carry out the daily operational activities of the Company and to implement strategic 
decisions aligned with our business plans. 
Through quarterly reports on business performance, the Company’s daily operational reports and ad-hoc 
management reports, Board of Directors evaluates that Board of Management have executed their duties in 
compliance with prevailing laws, the Company Charter and the Resolutions of General Shareholders Meetings. 
Although a�ected by Covid-19, but revenue and pro�t before tax of PHS are increased signi�cantly, which 
increased by 7.2% and 14%, respectively. This is strong evidence to show that our performance are really 
improved and much better than previous years. We tried our best to achieve the targets approved at General 
Shareholders Meetings. 
Additionally, the Board of Directors has conducted and performed their duties with care, professionalism and 
integrity so that protecting legal rights and bene�ts of the Company and its shareholders.
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average inflation in 2018 stayed at 3.5%, 
well below the Government’s target cap of 
4%, as fuel prices retreated. Despite rising 
global risks toward year-end and a high 
base in Q4 2017, Vietnam’s economy still 
managed to expand 7.3% YoY in Q4 2018, 
fueling a robust expansion of 7.1% for 
FY2018, the highest level in 11 years. 

3.5%

7.1%
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Our research includes daily and monthly market 
commentaries, investment strategy reports, industry 
reports, earnings reports, company recommendations, 
fixed income reports and comprehensive macroeconomic 
analysis. Our reports are published in both English and 
Vietnamese to best service our client base and to maximize 
their impact on the businesses that we analyze. Our 
recommendations are often quoted in the media and used 
as a reference for investment decisions.

In 2019, we will continue to improve the quality of 
our recommendations with actionable ideas as 
our analysts build their industry knowledge to 
seek out those companies with untapped 
valuation upside. 

In terms of internal factors, Vietnam’s 
average inflation in 2018 stayed at 3.5%, 
well below the Government’s target cap of 
4%, as fuel prices retreated. Despite rising 
global risks toward year-end and a high 
base in Q4 2017, Vietnam’s economy still 
managed to expand 7.3% YoY in Q4 2018, 
fueling a robust expansion of 7.1% for 
FY2018, the highest level in 11 years. 

“

“ Regarding principal trading 
activities, VCSC does not 
invest for short-term gains, 
but focuses on investing in 
pre-listed companies and then 
assisting to develop value in 
investee businesses. 

Inflation 3.5%

GDP 7.1%

other firms.

Our research includes daily and monthly market 
commentaries, investment strategy reports, industry 
reports, earnings reports, company recommendations, 
fixed income reports and comprehensive macroeconomic 
analysis. Our reports are published in both English and 
Vietnamese to best service our client base and to maximize 
their impact on the businesses that we analyze. Our 
recommendations are often quoted in the media and used 
as a reference for investment decisions.

In 2019, we will continue to improve the quality of 
our recommendations with actionable ideas as 
our analysts build their industry knowledge to 
seek out those companies with untapped 
valuation upside. 

“

“Regarding principal trading 
activities, VCSC does not 
invest for short-term gains, 
but focuses on investing in 
pre-listed companies and then 
assisting to develop value in 
investee businesses. 
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VI. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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 Code Note 

31/12/2020 
VND 

31/12/2019 
VND 

 ASSETS     
      
A CURRENT ASSETS 

(100 = 110 + 130) 100  2,077,677,150,112 1,652,163,390,210 
      
I Financial assets 110  2,075,272,340,831 1,650,131,619,899 
1 Cash and cash equivalents 111 5 127,518,080,479 320,167,339,450 
1.1  Cash  111.1  70,656,481,089 280,687,339,450 
1.2  Cash equivalents 111.2  56,861,599,390 39,480,000,000 
2 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 112 7(a) 10,478,501,257 4,031,198,460 
3 Held-to-maturity investments 113 7(b) 390,001,100,000 140,000,000,000 
4 Loans receivable 114 7(c)  1,526,115,693,192 1,152,505,700,729 
6 Allowance for diminution in 

value of financial assets 116 11(a) (6,837,025,917) (6,209,462,344) 
7 Receivables  117 8 21,521,607,009 20,293,692,333 
7.2  Dividends and interest 

receivables from financial assets 117.2  21,521,607,009 20,293,692,333 
8 Prepayments to suppliers  118  1,146,949,756 906,042,782 
9 Receivables from services rendered 119 9 1,586,330,917 14,854,588,411 
12 Other receivables 122 10 12,927,427,365 12,908,730,609 
13 Allowance for doubtful debts 129 11(b) (9,186,323,227) (9,326,210,531) 
      
II Other current assets  130  2,404,809,281 2,031,770,311 
1 Advances 131  160,762,020 234,021,500 
3 Short-term prepaid expenses 133 12(a) 2,244,047,261 1,797,748,811 
      
B LONG-TERM ASSETS  

(200 = 220 + 240 + 250) 200  57,423,084,938 24,670,500,938 
      
II Fixed assets 220  19,046,066,554 10,079,106,115 
1   Tangible fixed assets 221 13 14,967,601,180 7,594,889,993 

 Cost 222  37,403,994,515 29,261,905,860 
 Accumulated depreciation 223a  (22,436,393,335) (21,667,015,867) 

3 Intangible fixed assets 227 14 4,078,465,374 2,484,216,122 
 Cost 228  10,985,466,400 8,161,659,400 
 Accumulated amortisation 229a  (6,907,001,026) (5,677,443,278) 
      

IV Construction in progress 240 15  8,998,200,000 - 
      

V Other long-term assets 250  29,378,818,384 14,591,394,823 
1 Long-term deposits 251 16 4,091,454,365 2,158,593,638 
2 Long-term prepaid expenses 252 12(b) 5,509,349,173 5,375,565,117 
3 Deferred tax assets 253 17 313,898,778 93,120,000 
4 Deposits at Payment Support Fund 254 18 9,464,116,068 6,964,116,068 
5 Other long-term assets 255 19 10,000,000,000 - 
      

 TOTAL ASSETS  
(270 = 100 + 200) 270  2,135,100,235,050 1,676,833,891,148 
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 Code Note 

31/12/2020 
VND 

31/12/2019 
VND 

      
C LIABILITIES 

(300 = 310 + 340) 300  1,141,671,321,227 906,548,441,876 

      
I Current liabilities 310  1,140,359,800,393 906,211,288,048 
1 Short-term borrowings and 

finance lease liabilities  311  747,535,000,000 775,236,400,000 
1.1 Short-term borrowings 312 20 747,535,000,000 775,236,400,000 
6 Accounts payable for 

securities trading activities 318 21 364,528,420,516 111,293,382,916 
8 Accounts payable to suppliers 320  4,111,386,287 115,116,481 
10 Taxes payable to State Treasury 322 22 7,809,489,765 4,876,090,886 
11 Payables to employees 323  6,146,000 5,830,000 
12 Employees’ benefits payable  324  376,030,823 379,476,823 
13 Accrued expenses 325 23 15,185,556,152 13,772,928,606 
15 Unearned revenue 327  4,999,997 -    
17 Other payables 329 24 802,770,853 532,062,336 
      
II Long-term liabilities 340  1,311,520,834 337,153,828 
12 Provisions – long-term  354  1,311,520,834 317,300,000 
14 Deferred tax liabilities 356 17 -    19,853,828 
      
D EQUITY (400 = 410) 400  993,428,913,823 770,285,449,272 
      
I Owners’ equity 410  993,428,913,823 770,285,449,272 
1 Share capital 411  899,998,815,000 699,998,815,000 
1.1 Share capital 411.1 25 900,000,000,000 700,000,000,000 
1.5 Treasury shares 411.5  (1,185,000) (1,185,000) 
4 Reserve to supplement share 

capital 414  5,018,242,793 2,376,077,650 
5 Financial reserve 415  5,018,242,793 2,376,077,650 
7 Retained profits 417  83,393,613,237 65,534,478,972 
7.1 Realised profits 417.1  80,534,286,294 63,350,375,977 
7.2 Unrealised profits 417.2  2,859,326,943 2,184,102,995 
      
 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

EQUITY (440 = 300 + 400) 440  2,135,100,235,050 1,676,833,891,148 
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS    
    
 Code 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
  VND VND 
A. THE COMPANY’S ASSETS     
    
6     Shares in circulation (quantity of 
securities) 006 89,999,510 69,999,510 
7     Treasury shares (quantity of securities) 007 490 490 
8     Listed/registered financial assets at 

Vietnam Securities Depository (“VSD”) of 
the Company 008 2,314,440,000 1,035,980,000 

9     Custodied financial assets at VSD but not 
yet traded of the Company 009 2,550,000 2,550,000 

10   The Company’s financial assets in transit  010 546,600,000 234,000,000 
13   The Company’s right to receive financial 

assets 013 80,000 220,000 
    
B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES RELATING TO 

ASSETS MANAGED BY THE COMPANY   
  

    
1  Listed/registered financial assets at VSD of 

investors/customers 021 5,254,510,749,200 4,728,311,767,000 
a     Freely traded financial assets  021.1 4,978,338,825,200 4,588,152,077,000 
b     Financial assets restricted on transfer 021.2 56,603,070,000 12,941,700,000 
c     Pledged financial assets  021.3 59,866,560,000 59,866,560,000 
d     Blocked financial assets  021.4 70,000 70,000 
e     Financial assets awaiting settlement 021.5 159,702,224,000 67,351,360,000 
2     Investors’/customers’ financial assets 

custodied at VSD but not yet traded   022 173,019,360,000 78,327,490,000 
a Freely traded financial assets at VSD but 

not yet traded 022.1 82,819,360,000 77,982,490,000 
b Custodied financial assets at VSD but not 

yet traded and restricted on transfer   022.2 90,200,000,000 345,000,000 
3  Investors’/customers’ financial assets in 

transit  023 193,086,368,800 57,803,535,000 
6  Investors’/customers’ rights to receive 

financial assets  025 502,930,000 3,374,990,000 
7  Customers’ deposits 026 204,242,106,418 49,435,441,889 
7.1  Customers’ cash deposits managed by 

the Company for securities transactions  027 204,049,998,312 49,435,441,889 
7.2  Customers’ margin deposits at VSD 027.1 192,108,106 -    
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 Code 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
    
8 Payables to customers for cash deposits 

managed by the Company for securities 
transactions  031 204,049,998,312 49,435,441,889 

8.1 Payables to domestic customers for cash 
deposits managed by the Company for 
securities transactions  031.1 198,767,205,992 44,338,806,235 

8.2 Payables to foreign customers for cash 
deposits managed by the Company for 
securities transactions  031.2 5,282,792,320 5,096,635,654 
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 Code Note 2020 

VND 
2019 
VND 

      
I OPERATING INCOME     
1.1 
 

Gains from financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)  01  3,976,256,726 1,523,389,675 

a Gains from sales of financial assets at    
FVTPL 01.1 26 3,734,101,207 1,295,749,556 

b Unrealised gains from revaluation of 
financial assets at FVTPL 01.2  159,481,540 72,427,735 

c Dividends and interest income from 
financial assets at FVTPL 01.3  82,673,979 155,212,384 

1.2 Interest income from held-to-maturity 
investments 02 27 27,614,667,457 11,269,902,468 

1.3 Income from loans and receivables 03 28 113,157,436,199 129,349,693,034 
1.6 Revenue from securities brokerage 06  65,883,939,919 50,210,586,426 
1.9 Revenue from securities custody 09  1,646,389,358 1,532,409,051 
1.10 Revenue from advisory services 10  240,898,989 934,954,546 
1.11 Other operating income 11  875,546,829 760,293,206 
      
 

Total operating income  20  213,395,135,477 195,581,228,406 

      
II OPERATING EXPENSES      
2.1 Losses from financial assets at FVTPL    21  1,656,736,731 1,208,225,048 
a    Losses from sales of financial assets at 

FVTPL 21.1 26 1,627,679,139 1,235,066,451 
b Unrealised losses/(gains) from 

revaluation of financial assets at 
FVTPL 21.2 

 
29,057,592 (26,841,403) 

2.4 Allowance for loans and receivables 24 11(a) 627,563,573 157,822,703 
2.6 Expenses for securities trading and 

investments 26  1,520,697,400 1,298,954,093 
2.7 Expenses for securities brokerage 27 29 75,421,882,659 65,714,817,896 
2.10 Expenses for securities custody 30  1,998,397,657 2,095,489,555 
2.11 Expenses for advisory services 31  1,180,083,060 872,179,884 
2.12 Other operating expenses 32 11(b) (139,887,304) 36,521,025 
      
 

Total operating expenses  40  82,265,473,776 71,384,010,204 
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    Code 
 
Note 

2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

      
III FINANCIAL INCOME     
3.1 Realised and unrealised foreign 

exchange gains 41  2,518,925,808 5,907,946,744 
3.2 Dividends and interest income from 

bank deposits 42  343,733,993 288,524,752 
      
 

Total financial income  50  2,862,659,801 6,196,471,496 

      
IV FINANCIAL EXPENSES     
4.1 Realised and unrealised foreign 

exchange losses 51  2,779,182,547 6,483,647,059 
4.2 Interest expense 52 30 16,777,859,843 26,790,151,853 
      
 Total financial expenses  60  19,557,042,390 33,273,798,912 

      
VI GENERAL AND 

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 62 31 48,345,101,618 39,205,293,931 

      
VII RESULTS FROM OPERATING   
 ACTIVITIES  

(70 = 20 + 50 – 40 – 60 – 62) 70  66,090,177,494 57,914,596,855 

      
VIII OTHER INCOME AND OTHER  

EXPENSES  
8.1 Other income 71  23,230,909 15,752,368 
8.2 Other expenses 72  398,046,521 125,000,000 
      
 Results from other activities 

(80 = 71 – 72) 80  (374,815,612) (109,247,632) 

      
IX ACCOUNTING PROFIT 

BEFORE TAX (90 = 70 + 80) 90  65,715,361,882 57,805,349,223 

9.1 Realised profit before tax 91  65,040,137,934 52,329,380,085 
9.2 Unrealised profit before tax 92  675,223,948 5,475,969,138 
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    Code 
 

Note 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

      
X INCOME TAX EXPENSE 100  12,872,059,031 10,283,796,217 
10.1 Income tax expense - current 100.1 32 13,112,691,637 10,357,062,389 
10.2 Income tax benefit - deferred 100.2 32 (240,632,606) (73,266,172) 
      
XI NET PROFIT AFTER TAX 

(200 = 90 - 100) 200  52,843,302,851 47,521,553,006 

      
XII OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME  300  - - 

      
XIII EARNINGS PER SHARE 500    
13.1 Basic earnings per share 501 33 603 679 
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 Code 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

    

I     CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

1 Profit before tax 01 65,715,361,882 57,805,349,223 
2 Adjustments for 02 19,230,154,324 36,292,416,390  

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 03 3,738,560,161 2,580,795,791 
 Allowances and provisions 04 487,676,269 194,343,728 
Unrealised foreign exchange gains 05 (544,800,000) (5,376,700,000) 
Interest expense  06 16,777,859,843 26,790,151,853 
Gains from investment activities 07 (1,227,273) - 
Accrued interest income 08 (1,227,914,676) 12,103,825,018 

    
3 Change in non-monetary expenses 10 29,057,592 (26,841,403) 

Increase/(decrease) in revaluation losses from 
financial assets at FVTPL  11 29,057,592 (26,841,403) 
    

4 Change in non-monetary income 18 (159,481,540) (72,427,735) 
Increase in revaluation gains from financial 
assets at FVTPL 19 (159,481,540) (72,427,735) 
    

5 Operating profit before changes in 
working capital (30 = 01 + 02 + 10 + 18)  30 84,815,092,258 93,998,496,475 
Increase in financial assets at FVTPL 31 (6,316,878,849) (1,352,732,732) 
Increase in held-to-maturity investments 32 (250,001,100,000) (60,000,000,000) 
(Increase)/Decrease in loans receivable  33 

 
(373,609,992,463) 22,662,252,258 

Decrease in receivables from services 
rendered 37 13,268,257,494 872,427,552 
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables 39 (18,696,756) 27,257,539 
Increase in other assets 40 (14,359,601,247) (2,674,040,314) 
Increase in accrued expenses 41 2,330,212,027 1,196,160,820 
Increase in prepaid expenses 42 (580,082,506) (1,714,597,169) 
Corporation income tax paid 43 (12,277,559,889) (7,108,114,533) 
Interest paid 44 (17,695,444,324) (26,515,679,681) 
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable 45 (243,837,168) 194,577,918 
(Decrease)/increase in employees’ benefits 
payable 

46 (3,446,000) 2,528,750 
Increase in taxes payable to State Treasury  47 2,098,267,131 347,287,726 
Increase in payables to employees 48 316,000 1,288,000 
Increase in other payables 50 254,157,244,958 6,999,530,212 
    

Net cash flows from operating activities 60 (318,437,249,334) 26,936,642,821 
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 Code 2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

  
II     CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Payments for additions to fixed assets and 
other long-term assets 61 (17,704,520,600) (5,291,900,800) 
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 62 1,227,273 - 

    

Net cash flows from investing activities 70 (17,703,293,327) (5,291,900,800)  

    
III   CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Proceeds from shares issued  71 200,000,000,000 - 
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 73 5,131,947,752,099 4,154,226,008,349 
Payments to settle borrowing principals 74 (5,159,104,352,099) (4,021,278,908,349) 
Dividend paid to the shareholders  76 (29,352,116,310) (22,713,348,037) 

    

Net cash flows from financing activities 80 143,491,283,690 110,233,751,963 

Net cash flows during the year 90 (192,649,258,971) 131,878,493,984 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the year 101 320,167,339,450 188,288,845,466 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 
the year (Note 5) 103 127,518,080,479 320,167,339,450 

    
 Cash 103.1 70,656,481,089 280,687,339,450 
 Cash equivalents 103.2 56,861,599,390 39,480,000,000 
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CASH FLOWS OF CUSTOMERS FOR BROKERAGE AND ENTRUSTMENT ACTIVITIES  
 

 Code 2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

Cash flows of customers for brokerage 
and entrustment activities    

 
Proceeds from sales of securities brokered 
by the Company  01 20,707,417,053,638 16,250,528,692,063 
Payments for purchases of securities 
brokered by the Company 02 (18,220,172,194,180) (13,740,290,451,630) 
Deposits received to settle securities 
transactions of customers 07 24,843,292,980,424 21,640,839,991,760 
Investors' margin deposits at VSD 07.1 192,108,106 - 
Payments to settle securities transactions 
of customers 08 (27,174,378,940,235) (24,152,606,205,905) 
Payments for custody fee of customers’ 
securities 11 (1,544,343,224) (1,135,396,445) 
    

Net cash flows during the year 20 154,806,664,529 (2,663,370,157) 

Cash and cash equivalents of customers 
at the beginning of the year 

30 49,435,441,889 52,098,812,046 

Cash in banks at the beginning of the year 31 49,435,441,889 52,098,812,046 
 Cash deposits for securities transactions 

of customers managed by the Company 32 49,435,441,889 52,098,812,046 
    
Cash and cash equivalents of customers 
at the end of the year (40 = 20 + 30) 40 204,242,106,418 49,435,441,889 

Cash in banks at the end of the year 41 204,242,106,418 49,435,441,889 

 Cash deposits for securities transactions 
of customers managed by the Company 42 204,242,106,418 49,435,441,889 
In which: Investors' margin deposits at 
VSD  192,108,106 - 
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 Opening balance as at  Movements during the year ended Closing balance as at 
 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 
   Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)   
 VND VND VND VND VND VND VND VND 
         

Share capital 700,000,000,000 700,000,000,000 - - 200,000,000,000 - 700,000,000,000 900,000,000,000 
Other capital - -    - - - - -  
Treasury shares (1,185,000) (1,185,000) - - - - (1,185,000) (1,185,000) 
Reserve to supplement share 
capital - 2,376,077,650 2,376,077,650 - 2,642,165,143 - 2,376,077,650 5,018,242,793 
Financial reserve - 2,376,077,650 2,376,077,650 - 2,642,165,143 - 2,376,077,650 5,018,242,793 
Retained profits 45,864,919,566 65,534,478,972 47,521,553,006 (27,851,993,600) 52,843,302,851 (34,984,168,586) 65,534,478,972 83,393,613,237 

In which:         
Realised profits 49,156,785,709 63,350,375,977 42,045,583,868 - 52,168,078,903 - 91,202,369,577 115,518,454,880 
Dividend distribution - -    - (23,099,838,300) - (29,699,838,300) (23,099,838,300) (29,699,838,300) 
Allocation for reserves - -    - (4,752,155,300) - (5,284,330,286) (4,752,155,300) (5,284,330,286) 
Unrealised (losses)/profits  (3,291,866,143) 2,184,102,995 5,475,969,138 - 675,223,948 - 2,184,102,995 2,859,326,943 

         

Total  745,863,734,566 770,285,449,272 52,273,708,306 (27,851,993,600) 258,127,633,137 (34,984,168,586) 770,285,449,272 993,428,913,823 
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
financial statements. 
 

1. Reporting entity 

(a) Establishment  
Phu Hung Securities Corporation (“the Company”) is a joint stock company established in Vietnam 
under Establishment and Operation Licence No. 122/GP-UBCK dated 20 January 2016 issued by the 
State Securities Commission of Vietnam.   
 
The Company was established on the basis of combining Phu Hung Securities Corporation (“PHS”) 
– established under Establishment and Operation Licence No. 23/UBCK-GPHDKD dated 1 
December 2006 and An Thanh Securities Joint Stock Company (“ATS”).  Accordingly, the 
Company took over all of the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of PHS and ATS as at 19 
January 2016 and PHS and ATS ceased their operations from 20 January 2016.  Assets and 
liabilities of PHS and ATS as at 19 January 2016 were transferred to the Company at book value and 
the net asset (total assets – total liabilities) of PHS and ATS as at 30 September 2015 formed the 
share capital of the Company. 
 
The Company’s shares are registered for UpCoM trading with the code PHS in accordance with 
Decision No. 475/QD-SGDHN issued by Hanoi Stock Exchange on 19 July 2019. 
 

(b) The Company’ charter capital 
As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s charter capital was VND 900,000,000,000 (31/12/2019: 
VND 700,000,000,000).  
 

(c) Principal activities 
The principal activities of the Company are to carry out securities brokerage, securities trading, 
securities investment advisory, margin loan, securities custody and securities underwriting. 
 

(d) Normal operating cycle 
The normal operating cycle of the Company is generally within 12 months. 
 

(e) Number of employees 
As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 236 employees (31/12/2019: 198 employees). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Basis of preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, 
the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises, Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30 
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December 2014 (“Circular 210”) issued by the Ministry of Finance on the promulgation of accounting 
guidance for securities companies and Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC dated 27 December 2016 
(“Circular 334”) issued by the Ministry of Finance amending, supplementing and superseding 
Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210 and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to 
financial reporting. 
 

(b) Basis of measurement  
The financial statements, except for the statement of cash flows and financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss as described in Note 3(d), are prepared on the accrual basis using the historical 
cost concept.  The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. 
 

(c) Annual accounting period 
The annual accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December. 
 

(d) Accounting and presentation currency 
The Company’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND”), which is also the currency used for 
financial statement presentation purpose. 
 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation 
of these financial statements. 
 

(a) Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at rates 
approximating actual rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.   
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND 
at the account transfer selling rates at the end of the accounting period quoted by the commercial 
bank where the Company most frequently conducts transactions at the end of the accounting period. 
 
All foreign exchange (“FX”) differences are recorded in the statement of income.  
 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash comprises cash on hand, cash in banks and cash deposits for securities transactions clearing and 
settlement of the Company.  Cash deposits for securities transactions, securities transactions 
clearing and settlement of the customers are separated from the Company’s accounts. 
 
Cash equivalents are short-term investments with term to maturity of not more than 3 months, which 
are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities 

(i) Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in statement of financial position when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets and financial liabilities.  
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(ii) Classification and measurement 

� Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): see Note 3(d); 

� Held-to-maturity investments: see Note 3(e); 

� Loans receivable: see Note 3(f); 
 
The Company classifies all of its financial liabilities as financial liabilities at amortised cost.  

(iii) Derecognition  
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expired. 

(iv) Offsetting 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when and only when the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

(d) Financial assets at FVTPL  
A financial asset at fair value through profit and loss is a financial asset that meets either of the 
following conditions: 

 It is considered by management as held for trading.  A financial asset is considered as held for 
trading if:  

- it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; 
- there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 
- a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and 

effective hedging instrument). 

 Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss. 
 

Financial assets at FVTPL are initially recognised at cost which includes the purchase price. 
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at market price or fair value (when market price 
is not available) with changes in market price or fair value being recognised in profit or loss in the 
statement of income.  
 
For listed securities, the market prices are the closing prices of securities from the Ho Chi Minh City 
Stock Exchange and the Hanoi Stock Exchange at the latest trading date prior to the reporting date. 
 
For securities registered for trading in Unlisted Public Company Market (“UPCOM”), the market 
prices are the closing prices of securities from UPCOM at the latest trading date prior to the reporting 
date. 
 
For unlisted securities and not yet registered for trading, the market price is the average price of the 
transaction prices at the latest trading date prior to the reporting date but within one month from the 
reporting date provided by three securities companies which are not related to the Company.  In 
case there are no transaction prices within this period, no allowance is required.  
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For delisted securities and securities for which trading has been suspended or cancelled from the sixth 
day onward, the fair value is the book value at the latest balance sheet date. 
 
Investments in equity instruments including derivative instruments to be settled by equity instruments 
are stated at cost if there are no market prices and their fair values cannot be determined reliably. 
 

(e) Held-to-maturity investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and a fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other 
than: 

 
 those that the Company on initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss; 
 those that the Company on initial recognition designates as available-for-sale; and  
 those that meet the definition of loans and receivable. 

 
Held-to-maturity investments comprise term deposits at banks and these investments are stated at 
cost less allowance for doubtful debts. 

(f) Loans receivable 
Loans receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.   
 
Loans receivable comprise margin loans and advances to customers for the proceeds from selling 
securities and these loans receivable are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.   
Allowance for doubtful debts is based on the difference between the market price or fair value of the 
collateral and the gross carrying amount of underlying loan at the reporting date. 
 

(g) Accounts receivable 
Receivables from sales of financial assets and services rendered and other receivables are stated at 
cost less allowance for doubtful debts. 
 
Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on the overdue status of debts or expected losses on 
undue debts which may occur when an economic organisation is bankrupted or liquidated; or debtor 
is missing, running away, being prosecuted, in prison, under a trial or pending execution of sentences 
or deceased. 
 
The allowance for doubtful debts based on overdue status is made by referrence to overdue status as 
follows: 
 
Overdue status Allowance rate 
  

From six (06) months to less than one (01) year 30% 
From one (01) year to less than two (02) years 50% 
From two (02) years to less than three (03) years 70% 
From three (03) years and over 100% 
  

For overdue debts, the Company’s Management also assesses the expected recovery of the debts in 
determining the allowance. 
 
Allowance for doubtful debts based on the expected losses of undue debts is determined by the 
Company’s Management after giving consideration to the recovery of these debts. 
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(h) Tangible fixed assets 

(i) Cost 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  The initial cost of a tangible 
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and 
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.  
Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and 
maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the statement of income in the year in which the cost is 
incurred.  In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets 
beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an 
additional cost of tangible fixed assets. 

(ii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed 
assets.  The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 
 leasehold improvements 5 years 
 office equipment 3 - 7 years 
 motor vehicles 3 - 4 years 
 fixtures and fittings 5 years 
  

  

(i) Intangible fixed assets  

Software 
Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised 
and treated as an intangible asset.  Software cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to 7 
years. 
 

(j) Construction in progress 
Construction in progress presents the cost of software which have not been fully completed. No 
depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the period of installation.  
 

(k) Long-term prepaid expenses 
Long-term prepaid expenses comprise of tools and instruments which include assets held for use by 
the Company in the normal course of business whose costs of individual items are less than VND30 
million and therefore not qualified for recognition as fixed assets under prevailing regulations.  Cost 
of tools and instruments are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 years. 
 

(l) Trade and other payables 
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost. 
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(m) Provisions 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

Severance allowance 
Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an employee who has worked for 12 months or more (“the 
eligible employees”) voluntarily terminates his/her labour contract, the employer is required to pay 
the eligible employee severance allowance calculated based on years of service and employee’s 
compensation at termination.  Provision for severance allowance has been provided based on 
employees’ years of service and their average salary for the year prior to the end of the accounting 
period.  For the purpose of determining the number of years of service by an employee, the period 
for which the employee participated in and contributed to unemployment insurance in accordance 
with prevailing laws and regulations and the period for which severance allowance has been paid by 
PHS, ATS and the Company are excluded. 
 

(n) Taxation 
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is 
recognised as expense/income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly to equity, 
in which case it is recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at 
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.  The amount 
of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the temporary differences asset can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.  
 

(o) Share capital 

(i) Ordinary shares   
Ordinary shares are stated at par value.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of shares, 
net of tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from share premium. 
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(ii)   Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (treasury shares) 
When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which 
includes directly attributable costs, net of tax effects, is recognised as a reduction from equity.  
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares under equity.  When treasury shares are sold 
for reissue subsequently, cost of the reissued shares is determined on a weighted average basis.  Any 
difference between the amount received and the cost of the shares reissued is presented within share 
premium. 
 

(p) Statutory reserves 
According to Circular No. 146/2014/TT-BTC dated 6 October 2014 issued by the Ministry of 
Finance, the Company is required to make the following allocations from realised profit to statutory 
reserves: 
 

 Annual allocation Maximum balance 
   

Reserve to supplement share capital 5% profit after tax 10% of share capital 
Financial reserve 5% profit after tax 10% of share capital 
   
 
The reserve to supplement share capital and financial reserve are non-distributable and are classified 
as part of equity.  
 

(q) Revenue 

(i) Gains from sales of financial assets  
Gains from sales of financial assets is recognised in the statement of income upon receipt of the order 
matching reports of securities transactions from Vietnam Securities Depository (“VSD”) (for listed 
securities) and completion of the agreement on transfer of assets (for unlisted securities). 

(ii) Dividend and interest income from financial assets  
Dividend income is recognised in the statement of income when the Company’s right to receive 
dividends is established.  Share dividends are not recognised as income.   
 
Interest income is recognised in the statement of income on a time proportion basis with reference to 
the principal outstanding and the applicable interest rate.  Interest income also includes amortisation 
of discounts, premiums, interest received in advance or differences between the value at initial 
recognition and par value at maturity date.  

(iii) Revenue from securities brokerage 
Revenue from securities brokerage activities is recognised in the statement of income when the 
securities transactions of the customer have been processed. 
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(iv) Revenue from securities investment advisory and financial advisory  
Revenue from securities investment advisory and financial advisory activities is recognised in the 
statement of income in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction.  The stage of 
completion is assessed by reference to work performed. 

(v) Revenue from securities custody  
Revenue from securities custody activities is recognised in the statement of income when the service 
is rendered. 
 

(r) Interest expense 
Interest expense is recognised as an expense in the statement of income on accrual basis. 
 

(s) Operating lease payments 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of income 
as an integral part of the total lease expense. 
 

(t) Earnings per share  
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.  Basic 
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted 
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares. 
 

(u) Segment reporting  
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing related 
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular 
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are 
different from those of other segments.  The Company’s primary format for segment reporting is 
based on business segments. 
 

(v) Related parties 
Parties are considered to be related to the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
and operating decisions, or where the Company and the other party are subject to common control or 
significant influence.  Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close 
family members of any individual considered to be a related party. 
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(w) Nil balances 
Items or balances required by Circular 334 issued by the Ministry of Finance that are not shown in 
these financial statements indicate nil balances. 
 

4. Financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management 

(i) Overview 
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 
 credit risk;  
 liquidity risk; and 
 market risk. 
 
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the 
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. 
 
The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

(ii) Risk management framework 
The Board of Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework.  The Board of Management has established the Risk 
Management Committee (“RMC”), which is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Company’s risk management policies.  The RMC reports regularly to the Board of Management on 
its activities. 
 
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by 
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.  
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and the Company’s activities.  The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 
 
The Inspection Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit.  Internal Audit 
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results 
of which are reported to the Inspection Committee. 
 

(b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.   
 
To manage the level of credit risk, the Company attempts to deal with counterparties of good credit 
standing, and when appropriate, obtains collaterals.  The management has established a credit policy 
under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the standard 
terms and conditions are offered. 
 
Concentrations of credit risk that arise from groups of counterparties when they have similar 
economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 
affected by changes in economic or other conditions.  The major concentrations of credit risk arise 
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from type of customer in relation to the Company’s advances to customers for proceeds from selling 
securities and margin loans. 

Collaterals 
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the 
counterparty.  Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and 
valuation parameters.  The main types of collateral obtained are listed securities and cash deposited 
at the Company.  Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral 
in accordance with the underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained 
during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts. 
 

Exposure to credit risk 
Not considering collaterals, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 
was as follows: 
 
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 VND VND 
   
Cash in banks and cash equivalents (i) 127,514,944,224 320,161,276,195 
Held-to-maturity investments (i) 390,001,100,000 140,000,000,000 
Loans receivable – gross (ii) 1,526,115,693,192 1,152,505,700,729 
Receivables (ii) 21,521,607,009 20,293,692,333 
Receivables from services rendered (ii) 1,586,330,917 14,854,588,411 
Other receivables (ii) 12,927,427,365 12,908,730,609 
Deposits at Payment Support Fund  9,464,116,068 6,964,116,068 
Other long-term assets 10,000,000,000 - 
   

 2,099,131,218,775 1,667,688,104,345  

 

(i) Cash in banks, cash equivalents and held-to-maturity investments 
Cash in banks, cash equivalents and held-to-maturity investments of the Company are mainly held 
with well-known financial institutions.  Management does not foresee any significant credit risk 
from these deposits and does not expect that these financial institutions may default and cause losses 
to the Company. 
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(ii) Loans receivable and other receivables  
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each 
customer.  In response to the risk, credit limit is established for each customer, which represents the 
maximum open amount.  The limit is reviewed annually.  Debtors with balances that are overdue 
are requested to settle the balances before further credit is granted.  Customers are obliged to ensure 
their margin ratio is not lower than the maintenance margin ratio regulated by the Company. In case 
the customer’s margin ratio drops below the maintenance margin ratio, the Company requires 
customer to supplement additional collateral in an agreed period. If customer did not supplement 
addition collateral, the Company will implement handling measure in accordance with the contract.  
The main types of collateral obtained are cash deposits and securities.  The management of the 
Company monitors the market value of collateral and requests additional collateral in accordance 
with the underlying agreement and monitors the market price of collateral obtained during its review 
of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts. 
 
Loans receivable and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate to a wide 
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.  Management believes that 
those receivables are of high credit quality. 
 
 
An aging analysis of impaired financial assets is as follows: 
 

 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 VND VND 

   
Receivables being overdue of more than 3 years  11,910,272,245 12,064,279,773 
Margin loans being overdue of more than 3 years 5,974,199,169 10,197,951,244 
Margin loans being overdue of less than 1 year  862,826,748 -    
   

 18,747,298,162 22,262,231,017 

 
Fair value of collaterals for impaired financial assets are as follows: 
 
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 VND VND 
   
Cash deposited at the Company 210,468 269,022 
Listed securities on 2,723,738,550 6,726,289,120 
 The Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange 4,695,950 3,434,220    
 The Hanoi Stock Exchange -    3,988,488,900 
 UPCOM 2,719,042,600 2,734,366,000 
   

 
2,723,949,018 6,726,558,142 
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An aging analysis of financial assets that were past due but not impaired is as follows: 
 

 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 VND VND 

   
Receivables being overdue of more than 3 years  3,605,514,507 491,103,403 
   

  

 (c)  Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due.  The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. 
 
The financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments have the following contractual 
maturities including the estimated interest payments were as follows: 
 
As at 31 December 2020 Carrying  

amount 
Contractual  
cash flows 

Within  
1 year 

 VND VND VND 
    

Short-term borrowings 747,535,000,000 751,444,396,949 751,444,396,949 
Accounts payable for securities 
trading activities 364,528,420,516 364,528,420,516 364,528,420,516 
Accounts payable to suppliers 4,111,386,287 4,111,386,287 4,111,386,287 
Accrued expenses 5,651,168,415   5,651,168,415  5,651,168,415 
Other payables 802,770,853   802,770,853  802,770,853 
    

 1,122,628,746,071   1,126,538,143,020  1,126,538,143,020 

 
As at 31 December 2019 Carrying  

amount 
Contractual  
cash flows 

Within  
1 year 

 VND VND VND 
    

Short-term borrowings 775,236,400,000 782,849,900,708 782,849,900,708 
Accounts payable for securities 
trading activities 111,293,382,916 111,293,382,916 111,293,382,916 
Accounts payable to suppliers 115,116,481 115,116,481 115,116,481 
Accrued expenses 13,772,928,606 13,772,928,606 13,772,928,606 
Other payables 532,062,336 532,062,336 532,062,336 
    

 900,949,890,339 908,563,391,047 908,563,391,047 

 
The Company manages its ability to meet the expected operational expenses and servicing its debts 
by investing its cash surpluses in cash equivalents and short-term deposits at banks. 
 

 (d) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates 
and equity prices will affect the Company’s results of operations or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments.  The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 
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(i) Currency risk 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
The Company is exposed to currency risk on borrowings that are denominated in a currency other 
than the accounting currency of the Company, which is VND.  The currency in which these 
transactions primarily are denominated is United States Dollars (“USD”). 

Exposure to currency risk 

The Company had the following net monetary liability position exposed to currency risk: 
 
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 USD VND equivalent  USD VND equivalent  
     
Short-term borrowings 26,500,000 614,535,000,000 28,680,000 666,236,400,000 
     
 
The followings are the significant exchange rate applied by the Company: 
 
 Exchange rate as at 
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
   
USD/VND 23,190 23,230 
   
 
Below is an analysis of the possible impact on the net profit of the Company, after taking into account 
the current level of exchange rates and the historical volatility as well as market expectations at the 
reporting date.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 
constant. 
 
 Effect to net  

Profit after tax 
VND 

As at 31 December 2020  
USD (1% weakening against VND) – increase in net profit   4,916,280,000 
  
As at 31 December 2019  
USD (1% weakening against VND) – increase in net profit   5,329,891,200 
  

 
The opposite movement of the USD would have the equal but opposite effect to the net profit of the 
Company. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  
 
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments 
was as follows:  
 
 Carrying amount 
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 VND VND 
Fixed rate instruments   
Cash in banks and cash equivalents  127,514,944,224 320,161,276,195 
Held-to-maturity investments  390,001,100,000 140,000,000,000 
Loans receivable - net 1,519,278,667,275 1,146,296,238,385 
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Deposits at Payment Support Fund 9,464,116,068 6,964,116,068 
Other long-term assets 10,000,000,000 - 
Short-term borrowings (747,535,000,000) (775,236,400,000) 
   
 

(iii) Other market risk 
Equity price risk is the risk that the market values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the 
values of individual securities.  The equity price risk exposure arises from the Company’s financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss.   
 
The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are affected by market risk arising 
from the uncertainty of the fluctuation of the future market price of these securities.  The Company’s 
equity price risk is managed by the management who seeks to monitor the risk through a careful 
selection of securities within specified limits.   
 
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Company’s exposure to equity price risk is 
minimal because the Company held insignificant portfolio of financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss.   
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(e) Fair value  
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position were as follows:  
 

 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value 
 VND VND VND VND 

     
Categorised as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

�   Listed shares 10,475,155,718 10,475,155,718 4,027,877,978 4,027,877,978 
� Unlisted shares 3,345,539 3,345,539 3,320,482 3,320,482 

     
Categorised as held-to-maturity investments:      
 Term deposits at banks  340,000,000,000 (*) 140,000,000,000 (*) 
 Corporate bonds 50,001,100,000 (*) -    (*) 
     
Categorised as loans and receivables: 
 Cash and cash equivalents 127,518,080,479 127,518,080,479 320,167,339,450 320,167,339,450 
 Loans receivable - net 1,519,278,667,275 (*) 1,146,296,238,385 (*) 
 Receivables 21,521,607,009 (*) 20,293,692,333 (*) 
 Receivables from services rendered 1,586,330,917 (*) 14,854,588,411 (*) 
 Other receivables - net 3,741,104,138 (*) 3,582,520,078 (*) 
 Deposits at Payment Support Fund 9,464,116,068 (*) 6,964,116,068 (*) 
 Other long-term assets 10,000,000,000 (*) - (*) 
     
 
  

Phu Hung Securities Corporation – 2020 Annual Report    

83



 
 
 
Phu Hung Securities Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued) 

 Form B09 – CTCK 
(Issued under Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC  

dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance) 

27 

 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value 

 VND VND VND VND 
Financial liabilities      

  Categorised as liabilities at amortised cost:  
 Short-term borrowings  (747,535,000,000) (*) (775,236,400,000) (*) 
 Accounts payable for securities trading activities (364,528,420,516) (*) (111,293,382,916) (*) 
 Accounts payable to suppliers (4,111,386,287) (*) (115,116,481) (*) 
 Accrued expenses (5,651,168,415) (*) (13,772,928,606) (*) 
 Other payables (802,770,853) (*) (532,062,336) (*) 
     

 
(*) The Company has not determined fair values of these financial instruments for disclosure in the financial statements because information about their market prices 

is not available and there is currently no guidance on determination of fair value using valuation techniques under Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese 
Accounting System for enterprises and accounting guidance for securities companies.  The fair values of these financial instruments may differ from their carrying 
amounts. 
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5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Cash on hand 3,136,255 6,063,255 
Cash in banks  70,653,344,834 280,681,276,195 
Cash equivalents 56,861,599,390 39,480,000,000 

   

 127,518,080,479 320,167,339,450 

 
As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents of VND56,861,599,390 were pledged with banks as 
security for loans granted to the Company (31/12/2019: VND39,480,000,000) (Note 20). 
  

6. Volume and value of transactions during the year 
 2020 2019 
 Volume of  

transactions 
Value of  

transactions 
Volume of  

transactions 
Value of  

transactions 
  VND  VND 
a) The Company      

Shares 6,930,250 207,618,833,838 4,527,988 152,661,850,513 
Bond 15,091,320 1,590,274,599,640 4,661,218 480,766,016,204 
Other securities 907,560 10,007,296,719 - - 

     

b) Investors/customers    
Shares 2,546,957,403 39,971,153,145,318 1,719,499,088 29,985,109,762,293 
Bond 16,795,420 1,734,416,206,585 14,273,702 1,660,396,351,768 
Other securities 22,433,967 193,757,069,600 3,035,480 14,935,107,200 

     

 2,609,115,920 43, 707,227,151,700 1,745,997,476 32,293,869,087,978 
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7. Financial assets 

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 Cost Fair value Cost Fair value 
 VND VND VND VND 

     
Listed shares  9,769,258,831 9,977,325,318 3,950,657,122 4,023,980,878 
Shares registered for 
trading on UPCoM 504,069,944 497,830,400 5,817,861 3,897,100 
Unlisted shares 3,345,539 3,345,539 3,320,482 3,320,482 
     

 10,276,674,314 10,478,501,257 3,959,795,465 4,031,198,460 
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Movements of fair values of financial assets at FVTPL during the year were as follows: 
 

 31/12/2020 Revaluation difference as at 31/12/2020 
 Quantity Cost Fair value Revaluation gain Revaluation loss Revaluation value  

 VND VND VND VND VND 
 (1) (2) (3) = (2) – (1) (4) = (1) – (2) (5) = (1) + (3) – (4) 

Listed shares      
DRC  50,001   1,121,102,793   1,147,522,950   26,420,157   -     1,147,522,950  
MWG  9,007   1,071,332,599   1,070,932,300  -    400,299  1,070,932,300  
CTG  30,007   1,054,803,138   1,036,741,850  -    18,061,288  1,036,741,850  
TCB  30,009   898,193,185   945,283,500   47,090,315   -     945,283,500  
HPG  18,008   708,077,188   746,431,600   38,354,412   -     746,431,600  
NLG  25,003   735,318,788   737,588,500   2,269,712   -     737,588,500  
POW  45,000   551,250,000   612,000,000   60,750,000   -     612,000,000  
PLX  10,000   554,000,000   546,000,000   -     8,000,000  546,000,000  
MSN  6,005   503,343,338   533,844,500   30,501,162   -     533,844,500  
DGC  10,002   484,922,720   511,102,200   26,179,480   -     511,102,200  
Others 43,258 2,086,915,082 2,089,877,918 21,102,089 18,139,253 2,089,877,918 

       
 276,300 9,769,258,831 9,977,325,318 252,667,327 44,600,840 9,977,325,318 
       

UPCoM       
VEA 9,000 500,200,000 495,900,000 - 4,300,000 495,900,000 
Others 290 3,869,944 1,930,400 252,081 2,191,625 1,930,400 
       

 9,290 504,069,944 497,830,400 252,081 6,491,625 497,830,400 

       
       
       
Unlisted shares       
MCV 134 1,918,500 1,918,500  -     -     1,918,500  
CIC 54 679,437 679,437  -     -     679,437  
Others 94 747,602 747,602  -     -     747,602  
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 31/12/2020 Revaluation difference as at 31/12/2020 
 Quantity Cost Fair value Revaluation gain Revaluation loss Revaluation value  

 VND VND VND VND VND 
 (1) (2) (3) = (2) – (1) (4) = (1) – (2) (5) = (1) + (3) – (4) 
       

 282 3,345,539 3,345,539 -    -    3,345,539 

 285,872 10,276,674,314 10,478,501,257 252,919,408 (51,092,465)  10,478,501,257 
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 31/12/2019 Revaluation difference as at 31/12/2019 
 Quantity Cost Fair value Revaluation gain Revaluation loss Revaluation value  

 VND VND VND VND VND 
 (1) (2) (3) = (2) – (1) (4) = (1) – (2) (5) = (1) + (3) – (4) 

Listed shares      
TCB 32,209 748,428,185 758,521,950 10,093,765 -    758,521,950 
DRC 32,323 747,335,377 753,125,900 5,790,523 -    753,125,900 
HPG 32,294 746,782,506 758,909,000 12,126,494 -    758,909,000 
VNM 4,407 525,234,462 513,415,500 -    11,818,962 513,415,500 
BID 6,218 259,142,895 286,960,700 27,817,805 - 286,960,700 
NVL 4,321 243,741,960 257,099,500 13,357,540 - 257,099,500 
FPT 4,426 251,097,257 258,035,800 6,938,543 - 258,035,800 
VCB 2,794 248,084,965 252,018,800 3,933,835 - 252,018,800 
Others 7,068 180,809,515 185,893,728 13,214,914 8,130,701 185,893,728 

       

 126,060 3,950,657,122 4,023,980,878 93,273,419 19,949,663 4,023,980,878 
       

UPCoM       
HBD 60 846,765 1,296,000 449,235 - 1,296,000 
Others 364 4,971,096 2,601,100 196,838 2,566,834 2,601,100 
       

 424 5,817,861 3,897,100 646,073 2,566,834 3,897,100 
       

Unlisted shares       
MCV 134 1,918,500 1,918,500 -    - 1,918,500 
Others 145 1,401,982 1,401,982 - - 1,401,982 

       

 279 3,320,482 3,320,482 -    -    3,320,482 

 126,763 3,959,795,465 4,031,198,460 93,919,492 22,516,497 4,031,198,460 
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(b) Held-to-maturity investments  
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 Cost Fair value Cost Fair value 
 VND VND VND VND 

     
Term deposits at banks with 
original term to maturity of more 
than 3 months to 1 year (i) 340,000,000,000 (*) 140,000,000,000 (*) 
Corporate bonds (ii) 50,001,100,000 (*) - (*) 
     

 
390,001,100,000 (*) 140,000,000,000 (*) 

 
(i) As at 31 December 2020, term deposits at banks amounting to VND60,000,000,000 were pledged with 

banks as security for loans granted to the Company (31/12/2019: VND110,000,000,000) (Note 20).  
 

(ii) As at 31 December 2020, these unlisted corporate bonds with original term to maturity of 1 year and 
earned interest rate of 8% per annum (31/12/2019: nil). The coupon interest income is fixed and paid 
after every six months. 
 

(c) Loans receivable 
 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 
 Cost Fair value Cost Fair value 
 VND VND VND VND 

     
Margin loans (i) 1,390,747,070,299 (*) 1,095,599,974,467 (*) 
Advances to customers for the 
proceeds from selling securities (ii) 135,368,622,893 (*) 56,905,726,262 (*) 
     

 
1,526,115,693,192 (*)  1,152,505,700,729 (*)  

 
(i) The margin loans were granted to customers for margin trade.  As at 31 December 2020, these loans 

had original term to maturity of 90 days and earned annual interest rates ranging from 9% to 14% 
(31/12/2019: from 10% to 15%).  The initial minimum margin is 50% - 90% (31/12/2019: 50% - 90%) 
and minimum maintenance margin for the margin trade is 30% - 70% (31/12/2019: 30% - 50%). 
 

(ii)   As at 31 December 2020, advances to customers for the proceeds from selling securities earned annual 
interest rates ranging from 9% to 14% and had original term to maturity ranging from 1 day to 2 days 
(31/12/2019: from 10.5% to 14%).  
 

(*)  The Company has not determined fair values of these financial instruments for disclosure in the financial 
statements because information about their market prices is not available and there is currently no 
guidance on determination of fair value using valuation techniques under Vietnamese Accounting 
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and other accounting guidances for 
securities companies.  The fair values of these financial instruments may differ from their carrying 
amounts. 
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8. Receivables  
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Interest receivables from margin loans 14,700,734,925 16,500,130,138 
Interest receivables from corporate bonds 1,145,205,476 - 
Interest receivable from term deposits at banks 5,675,666,608 3,793,562,195 
   

 21,521,607,009 20,293,692,333 

 
 

9. Receivables from services rendered 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Receivables from clearing and settlement of securities 
transactions - 13,121,526,200 
Receivables from custody services  990,205,604 921,511,291 
Receivables from brokerage activities 558,190,219 181,531,948 
Other receivables  37,935,094 630,018,972 
   

 1,586,330,917 14,854,588,411 

 

10. Other receivables 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Advances to customers for securities trading activities (i) 12,395,295,949 12,555,383,176 
Others 532,131,416 353,347,433 
   

 12,927,427,365 12,908,730,609 

 
(i) These balances represent advances to customers for securities trading activities incurring before the 

issuance of Decision No. 637/QD-UBCK dated 30 August 2011 issued by the State Securities 
Commission of Vietnam which provides guidance for margin trade activities. Allowance for these 
advances were made and presented in Note 11(b). 
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11. Allowance for diminution in value of financial assets and doubtful debts 

(a) Allowance for diminution in value of financial assets  
2020 As at 31/12/2020   
 

Cost  
Recoverable 

amount  Allowance  
Allowance  

as at 31/12/2019 
Allowance made 
during the year 

 VND VND VND VND VND 
      
Margin loans 6,837,025,917 -    6,837,025,917 6,209,462,344 627,563,573 
      
 
2019 As at 31/12/2019   
 

Cost  
Recoverable 

amount  Allowance  
Allowance  

as at 31/12/2018 
Allowance made 
during the year 

 VND VND VND VND VND 
      
Margin loans 10,197,951,244 3,988,488,900 6,209,462,344 6,051,639,641 157,822,703 
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11.  Allowance for diminution in value of financial assets and doubtful debts (continued) 

(b) Allowance for doubtful debts  
2020 As at 31/12/2020   
 

Cost 
Recoverable 

amount Allowance 
Allowance 

as at 31/12/2019 
Allowance reversed 

during the year 
 VND VND VND VND VND 

      
Advances to customers for securities trading activities 11,910,272,245 2,723,949,018 9,186,323,227 9,326,210,531 (139,887,304) 
      
 
2019 As at 31/12/2019   
 

Cost 
Recoverable 

amount Allowance 
Allowance 

as at 31/12/2018 
Allowance made 
during the year 

 VND VND VND VND VND 
      

Advances to customers for securities trading activities 12,064,279,773 2,738,069,242 9,326,210,531 9,289,689,506 36,521,025 
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12. Prepaid expenses 

(a) Short-term prepaid expenses 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Maintenance expense 334,380,585 443,227,615 
Prepaid rental fees 324,165,784 347,919,870 
Others 1,585,500,892 1,006,601,326 
   

 2,244,047,261 1,797,748,811 

 

(b) Long-term prepaid expenses 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Tools and instruments  2,178,127,462 1,911,021,881 
Others 3,331,221,711 3,464,543,236 
   

 5,509,349,173 5,375,565,117 

 
Movements of long-term prepaid expenses during the year were as follows:  

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Opening balance 5,375,565,117 4,055,303,300 
Additions during the year  3,723,456,637 4,338,601,500 
Amortisation during the year  (3,589,672,581) (3,018,339,683) 
   

Closing balance 5,509,349,173 5,375,565,117 
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13. Tangible fixed assets 
2020 Leasehold 

improvements 
Office  

equipment 
Motor  

vehicles 
Fixtures and 

fittings Total 
 VND VND VND VND VND 

Cost   
  

 

Opening balance 1,734,108,818 25,262,357,042 2,265,440,000 -    29,261,905,860 
Additions -    9,828,567,100 -    53,146,500 9,881,713,600 
Write-off (386,757,140) (703,045,136) -    -    (1,089,802,276) 
Disposals -    (649,822,669) -    -    (649,822,669) 
      

Closing balance 1,347,351,678 33,738,056,337 2,265,440,000 53,146,500 37,403,994,515 

Accumulated depreciation  
  

 

Opening balance 1,734,108,818 19,663,640,315 269,266,734 -    21,667,015,867 
Charge for the year -    1,921,323,416 585,021,672 2,657,325 2,509,002,413 
Write-off (386,757,140) (703,045,136) -    -    (1,089,802,276) 
Disposals -    (649,822,669) -    -    (649,822,669) 
      

Closing balance 1,347,351,678 20,232,095,926 854,288,406 2,657,325 22,436,393,335 

Net book value      

Opening balance - 5,598,716,727 1,996,173,266 -    7,594,889,993 
Closing balance  -    13,505,960,411 1,411,151,594 50,489,175 14,967,601,180 
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13. Tangible fixed assets (continued)  
2019 Leasehold 

improvements 
Office  

equipment 
Motor  

vehicles Total 
 VND VND VND VND 

Cost   
 

 

Opening balance 1,734,108,818 22,274,342,712 - 24,008,451,530 
Additions -    3,026,460,800 2,265,440,000 5,291,900,800 
Disposals - (38,446,470) -    (38,446,470) 
     

Closing balance 1,734,108,818 25,262,357,042 2,265,440,000 29,261,905,860 

Accumulated depreciation  
 

 

Opening balance 1,734,108,818 18,395,569,176 -    20,129,677,994 
Charge for the year -    1,306,517,609 269,266,734 1,575,784,343 
Disposals -    (38,446,470) -    (38,446,470) 
     

Closing balance 1,734,108,818 19,663,640,315 269,266,734 21,667,015,867 

Net book value     

Opening balance -    3,878,773,536 -    3,878,773,536 
Closing balance  - 5,598,716,727 1,996,173,266 7,594,889,993 
     
 
Included in tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND17,568,510,315 which were fully depreciated 
as at 31 December 2020, but which are still in use (31/12/2019: VND19,049,773,760). 
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14. Intangible fixed assets 
 2020 2019 
 Software Software 
 VND VND 
Cost   
Opening and closing balance 8,161,659,400 8,161,659,400 
Addition 2,823,807,000 -    
   

Closing balance 10,985,466,400 8,161,659,400 

Accumulated amortisation   

Opening balance 5,677,443,278 4,672,431,830 
Charge for the year 1,229,557,748 1,005,011,448 
   

Closing balance 6,907,001,026 5,677,443,278 

Net book value   

Opening balance 2,484,216,122 3,489,227,570 
Closing balance  4,078,465,374 2,484,216,122 
   
 
Included in intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND1,742,545,000 which were fully depreciated 
as at 31 December 2020, but which are still in use (31/12/2019: VND1,305,495,000). 
 

15. Construction in progress 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Opening balance - - 
Additions during the year 8,998,200,000 - 
   
Closing balance 8,998,200,000 - 
   

 
Major constructions in progress were as follows: 
 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Software 8,998,200,000 - 
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16. Long-term deposits 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Security deposits for office, house and car rentals 4,091,454,365 2,158,593,638 
   
 

17. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

(a) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 
 Tax rate 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
    
Deferred tax assets:    

Accrued expenses 20% 354,264,166 93,120,000 
    

Total deferred tax assets 
 

354,264,166 93,120,000 

    
Deferred tax liabilities:    

Gains from revaluation of financial assets 
at FVTPL 20% (40,365,388) (19,853,828) 

    

Total deferred tax liabilities 
 

(40,365,388) (19,853,828) 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - net  313,898,778 (73,266,172) 

 

18. Deposits at Payment Support Fund  
 
According to Decision No. 45/QD-VSD dated 22 May 2014 issued by the Vietnam Securities 
Depository, the Company is required to deposit an initial amount of VND120 million at the Vietnam 
Securities Depository and an annual contribution of 0.01% of the total value of brokered securities, 
which are listed and registered for transactions in the Stock Exchanges, in the previous year with the 
maximum of annual contribution of VND2.5 billion to Payment Support Fund. 
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Movements of deposits at Payment Support Fund during the year were as follows: 
 
 2020 

VND 
2019 
VND 

   
Opening balance 6,964,116,068 4,464,116,068 
Deposits made during the year  2,107,703,366 2,280,686,961 
Interest received during the year  392,296,634 219,313,039 
   

Closing balance 9,464,116,068 6,964,116,068 

 

19. Other long-term assets 
 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Clearing Fund for derivatives trading activities 10,000,000,000 - 
   
 
According to Decision No. 97/QD-VSD dated 23 March 2017 issued by the Vietnam Securities 
Depository on regulations on management and use of clearing fund for derivative securities activities, 
the Company is responsible for contributing to the Clearing Fund for derivatives trading activities 
(“Clearing Fund”) in cash (VND) or securities. The initial minimum contribution is VND10 billion for 
direct clearing members, VND15 billion for general clearing members. 
 
The Company has become a direct clearing member of Vietnam Securities Depository under Certificate 
of Clearing Member No. 04/GCN-UBCK issued by Vietnam Securities Depository on 16 June 2020.  
 
Movements of deposits at the Clearing Fund during the year were as follows: 
 
 2020 

VND 
2019 
VND 

   
Opening balance - - 
Additions during the year 10,000,000,000  - 
   

Closing balance 10,000,000,000  - 
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20. Short-term borrowings  

Description Original 
currency 

Interest rate 
(per annum) 

Opening balance  
as at 1/1/2020 

VND 
Receipts 

VND 
(Payments) 

VND 

Foreign 
exchange 

differences 
VND 

Closing balance 
as at 31/12/2020 

VND 
        
Short-term borrowings from         
 Yuanta Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. USD 1.47% – 3.37% 116,150,000,000 116,330,000,000 (116,250,000,000) (280,000,000) 115,950,000,000 
 Cathay United Bank – Offshore  

banking unit USD 1.70% – 3.22% 116,150,000,000 117,380,000,000 (116,775,000,000) (805,000,000) 115,950,000,000 
 Chang Hwa Commercial Bank Ltd. – 

Hsi-sung Branch USD 1.64% – 3.70% 108,716,400,000 116,350,000,000 (109,171,600,000) 55,200,000 115,950,000,000 
 First Commercial Bank – Offshore 

Banking Branch  USD 1.63% – 3.80% 69,690,000,000 69,810,000,000 (69,750,000,000) (180,000,000) 69,570,000,000 
 Taiwan Shin Kong Commercial Bank 

Co., Ltd. USD 1.74% – 3.24% 69,690,000,000 69,620,000,000 (70,380,000,000) 640,000,000 69,570,000,000 
 Taishin International Bank USD 1.64% – 3.06% -    93,760,000,000 (47,420,000,000) 40,000,000 46,380,000,000 
 Union Bank of Taiwan USD 1.72% – 3.44% 69,690,000,000 46,540,000,000 (69,810,000,000) (40,000,000) 46,380,000,000 
 Cathay United Bank – Chu Lai Branch VND 3.80% – 5.75% -    66,000,000,000 (26,000,000,000) -    40,000,000,000 
 E.SUN Bank – Dong Nai Branch (i) VND 2.40% – 6.30% 50,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 (50,000,000,000) -    40,000,000,000 
 MEGA International Commercial Bank – 

Head Office (i) USD 2.00% – 3.40% 34,845,000,000 70,192,500,000 (70,260,000,000) 7,500,000 34,785,000,000 
 MEGA International Commercial Bank – 

Ho Chi Minh City Branch (i) VND 3.40% – 5.00% 30,000,000,000 43,000,000,000 (43,000,000,000) -    30,000,000,000 
 Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 

– Ho Chi Minh City Branch VND 2.18% -    46,000,000,000 (23,000,000,000) -    23,000,000,000 
 BIDV – Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Branch 

(i) VND 5.75% – 8.90% -    3,206,675,252,099 (3,206,675,252,099) -    -    
 Indovina Bank – Ho Chi Minh City 

Branch  VND 5.80% – 6.80% 29,000,000,000 34,000,000,000 (63,000,000,000) -    -    
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Description Original 
currency 

Interest rate 
(per annum) 

Opening balance 
as at 1/1/2020 

VND 
Receipts 
VND 

(Payments) 
VND 

Foreign 
exchange 

differences 
VND 

Closing balance 
as at 31/12/2020 

VND 
        
 The Shanghai Commercial & 

Savings Bank, Ltd. – Hong Kong 
Branch  USD 3.66% – 3.81% 81,305,000,000 -    (81,322,500,000) 17,500,000 -    

 OCB – Ho Chi Minh City Branch VND 5.25% – 7.80% -    559,600,000,000 (559,600,000,000) -    -    
 VietinBank Branch 4 – Ho Chi 

Minh city (i) VND 6.05% – 6.10% -    317,000,000,000 (317,000,000,000) -    -    
 Entie Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.  VND 1.92% – 3.44% -    69,690,000,000 (69,690,000,000) -    -    
 Bank SinoPac Co., Ltd. – Ho Chi 

Minh City Branch VND 4.10% – 5.00% - 30,000,000,000 (30,000,000,000) -    -    
 The Shanghai Commercial & 

Savings Bank, Ltd – Dong Nai 
Branch VND 4.40% – 6.60% -    20,000,000,000 (20,000,000,000) -    -    
        

 
 

 
775,236,400,000 5,131,947,752,099 (5,159,104,352,099) (544,800,000) 747,535,000,000 

 
(i) As at 31 December 2020, these borrowings are secured by cash and cash equivalents of VND56,861,599,390 (31/12/2019: VND39,480,000,000) (Note 5) and term 

deposits at banks of VND60,000,000,000 (31/12/2019: VND110,000,000,000) (Note 7(b)).
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21. Accounts payable for securities trading activities 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Settlements of securities transactions by customers 346,591,802,500 110,059,308,500 
Clearing and settlement of securities transactions 17,936,549,200 1,199,345,600 
Others 68,816 34,728,816 
   

 364,528,420,516 111,293,382,916 

 

22. Taxes payable to State Treasury 

 
Opening balance 
 as at 1/1/2020 Incurred Net-off/paid 

Closing balance 
as at 31/12/2020 

 VND VND VND VND 
     
Corporate income tax 3,248,947,856 13,112,691,637 (12,277,559,889) 4,084,079,604 
Personal income tax 1,608,072,869 21,831,785,911 (19,745,430,906) 3,694,427,874 
Value added tax 2,977,273 60,154,688 (60,587,516) 2,544,445 
Foreign contractor 
withholding tax 16,092,888 1,575,718,712 (1,563,373,758) 28,437,842 
     

 4,876,090,886 36,580,350,948 (33,646,952,069) 7,809,489,765 

 

 
Opening balance 
 as at 1/1/2019 Incurred Net-off/paid 

Closing balance 
as at 31/12/2019 

 VND VND VND VND 
     
Corporate income tax - 10,357,062,389 (7,108,114,533) 3,248,947,856 
Personal income tax 1,275,309,849 17,260,998,471 (16,928,235,451) 1,608,072,869 
Value added tax 4,545,455 101,939,091 (103,507,273) 2,977,273 
Foreign contractor 
withholding tax - 2,127,434,241 (2,111,341,353) 16,092,888 
     

 1,279,855,304 29,847,434,192 (26,251,198,610) 4,876,090,886 
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23. Accrued expenses 
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Employee costs 9,534,387,737 8,411,023,171 
Interest expense 635,401,501 1,552,985,982 
Securities transaction fees 2,153,305,684 1,308,364,960 
Consulting fees 129,328,861 69,066,187 
Others 2,733,132,369 2,431,488,306 
   

 15,185,556,152 13,772,928,606 

 

24. Other payables  
 31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   

Dividend payables (*) 734,212,253 386,490,263 
Payables to customers  31,363,000 31,247,800 
Other payables 37,195,600 114,324,273 
   

 802,770,853 532,062,336 

 
(*)  On 28 May 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors decided to distribute cash dividends of 

VND29,699,838,300 equivalent to VND330 per share (year ended 31 December 2019: 
VND23,099,838,300) based on the approved dividend plan approved by the Annual General Meeting 
of Shareholders on 27 April 2020. 
 

25. Share capital 
The Company's authorised and issued share capital are: 

 Authorised and contributed 
 2020 2019 

 VND % VND % 
Phu Hung Far East Holding 
Corporation 414,000,000,000 46.0% 322,000,000,000 46.0% 
An Thinh Development 
Limited 162,831,550,000 18.1% 64,831,550,000 9.3% 
Others 323,168,450,000 35.9% 313,168,450,000 44.7% 
     

 900,000,000,000 100% 700,000,000,000 100% 

 

Movements in issued share capital during the year were as follows: 

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 
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Balance at beginning of the period 700,000,000,000 700,000,000,000 
Shares issued (*)  200,000,000,000 - 
   

Balance at end of the period 900,000,000,000 700,000,000,000 

 
(*) On 9 January 2020, the State Securities Commission of Vietnam issued Official Letter No. 

224/UBCK-QLKD approving the Company's registration documents for the plan of private placement 
of shares. On 12 February 2020, the Company successfully issued 20,000,000 shares with issuance 
price of VND 10,000/shares and received the fund capital amounting of VND 200,000,000,000.  

On 4 March 2020, the State Securities Commission of Vietnam issued Amended Establishment and 
Operation Licence No. 12/GPDC-UBCK to approve the increase of the Company's charter capital to 
VND 900,000,000,000. 
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26. Gains/(losses) from sales of financial assets at FVTPL  

2020 Quantity 
Average  

selling price 
Total  

selling amount Total cost 
Gains/(losses) from 
sales of securities  

  VND VND VND VND 
      
Financial assets at FVTPL      
Listed shares and shares registered for trading on UpCoM      
HPG 341,190 27,257 9,299,736,500 8,858,944,423 440,792,077 
CTG 200,530 25,821 5,177,961,500 4,903,793,957 274,167,543 
ACB 101,900 25,465 2,594,880,000 2,729,130,000 (134,250,000) 
VCB 26,200 81,748 2,141,795,000 2,021,259,437 120,535,563 
GEX 117,040 21,528 2,519,610,000   2,399,970,221 119,639,779 
BMP 45,610 57,808 2,636,614,000 2,537,201,274 99,412,726 
MWG 25,930 92,746 2,404,916,000 2,308,272,031 96,643,969 
DHC 58,500 45,603 2,667,797,000 2,577,350,000 90,447,000 
VND 45,050 19,654 885,390,500 796,807,348 88,583,152 
TCB 153,700 21,315 3,276,155,000 3,364,173,000 (88,018,000) 
BID 18,020 46,188 832,308,000 751,009,701 81,298,299 
Others 2,252,510 29,699 66,897,527,300 66,719,352,797 178,174,503 

 3,386,180  29,926 101,334,690,800 99,967,264,189 1,367,426,611 

      
Listed bonds      
VPL11812 950,000  102,024  96,922,800,000  96,822,100,000  100,700,000  
MSN12001 480,000  103,880  49,862,400,000  49,836,480,000  25,920,000  
MSN12003 480,000 103,039 49,458,720,000 49,432,800,000 25,920,000 
Others 1,060,341 101,805 107,948,491,343 107,892,335,585 56,155,758 
      

 2,970,341   102,410 304,192,411,343  303,983,715,585  208,695,758  
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2020 Quantity 
Average 

selling price 
Total 

selling amount Total cost 
Gains/(losses) from 
sales of securities 

  VND VND VND VND 
      
Unlisted bonds      
MSN05202301                 1,930,000  100,511  193,985,309,947  193,632,527,397  352,782,550  
VPL04202402 1,940,000 102,747 199,328,795,078 199,199,197,469 129,597,609 
Others 705,294  103,498  72,996,632,821  72,956,010,000  40,622,821  

 4,575,294  101,919  466,310,737,846  465,787,734,866  523,002,980  
      

Fund certificates 453,780 11,035 5,007,296,719 5,000,000,000 7,296,719 

 11,385,595  77,014 876,845,136,708 874,738,714,640 2,106,422,068 
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2019 Quantity 
Average  

selling price 
Total  

selling amount Total cost 
Gains/(losses) from 
sales of securities 

  VND VND VND VND 
Financial assets at FVTPL      
Listed shares and shares registered  
for trading on UpCoM 

    

FPT              63,740 49,753 3,171,275,500 2,947,250,000 224,025,500 
DGW              38,500 24,235 933,039,000 984,745,000 (51,706,000) 
PNJ              32,300 92,095 2,974,675,000 3,022,783,000 (48,108,000) 
TCM              29,500 28,325 835,600,000 793,423,000 42,177,000 
VIC              23,650 114,923 2,717,940,000 2,760,105,000 (42,165,000) 
MSH              28,000 58,913 1,649,552,000 1,690,929,000 (41,377,000) 
VCB              57,700 67,186 3,876,640,000 3,836,827,928 39,812,072 
VNM              31,150 128,033 3,988,220,000 4,024,398,884 (36,178,884) 
POW              68,200 14,987 1,022,111,000 986,210,000 35,901,000 
BID              76,100 36,706 2,793,298,500 2,758,924,557 34,373,943 
Others 1,784,470 28,936 51,634,923,000 51,906,247,412 (271,324,412) 

 2,233,310 33,850  75,597,274,000 75,711,843,781 (114,569,781) 
      
Listed bonds      
MSN11719         430,609 103,505 44,570,184,545 44,546,931,659 23,252,886 
MSR118001        950,000 103,875 98,681,250,000 98,629,950,000 51,300,000 
SDI11717         950,000 102,336 97,219,200,000 97,118,500,000 100,700,000 

 2,330,609 103,179    240,470,634,545 240,295,381,659 175,252,886 

 4,563,919 69,254  316,067,908,545 316,007,225,440 60,683,105 
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27. Interest income from held-to-maturity investments  

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Interest income from term deposits 24,469,461,981 11,269,902,468 
Interest income from corporate bonds 3,145,205,476 - 
   

 27,614,667,457 11,269,902,468 

 

28. Income from loans and receivables 

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Interest income from margin loans 105,787,208,110 122,644,501,344 
Fees from advances to customers for the proceeds  
from selling securities 7,370,228,089 6,705,191,690 
   

 113,157,436,199 129,349,693,034 

 

29. Expenses for securities brokerage 
 2020 

VND 
2019 
VND 

   
Employee costs 26,835,505,940 27,416,370,356 
Brokerage commissions 23,112,077,951 16,543,434,213 
Securities brokerage fees 11,078,941,886 9,103,834,328 
Rental expenses 7,124,972,465 6,251,671,348 
External services 4,763,491,426 3,878,397,676 
Tools and supplies 1,204,721,038 1,132,236,483 
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 5,283,549 - 
Other expenses 1,296,888,404 1,388,873,492 
   

 75,421,882,659 65,714,817,896 
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30. Interest expense 
 2020 

VND 
2019 
VND 

   
Interest expense on borrowings 16,528,619,109 26,622,151,098 
Interest expense on customers’ deposits for securities trading 
activities 249,240,734 168,000,755 
   

 16,777,859,843 26,790,151,853 

 

31. General and administration expenses 
 2020 

VND 
2019 
VND 

   
Employee costs 22,001,799,207 17,894,995,295 
External services 15,524,678,267 12,669,290,806 
Rental expenses 2,965,904,582 2,663,194,239 
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 3,721,495,612 2,569,426,493 
Tools and supplies 1,017,018,358 763,418,918 
Taxes and fees 126,797,504 37,494,603 
Other expenses 2,987,408,088 2,607,473,577 
   

 48,345,101,618 39,205,293,931 
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32. Income tax  

(a) Recognised in the statement of income 

 
31/12/2020 

VND 
31/12/2019 

VND 
   
Current tax expense   
Current year 13,529,635,007 10,357,062,389 
Over provision in prior year (416,943,370) - 
   

 13,112,691,637 10,357,062,389 
   
Deferred tax benefit   
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (240,632,606) (73,266,172) 
   

Income tax expense 12,872,059,031 10,283,796,217 

 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

 2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

Accounting profit before tax 65,715,361,882 57,805,349,223 

   
Tax at the Company’s tax rate 13,143,072,376 11,561,069,845 
Non-deductible expenses 162,464,821 139,388,101 
Non-taxable income (16,534,796) (31,042,477) 
Over provision in prior year (416,943,370) - 
Tax losses utilised - (1,385,619,252) 
   

 12,872,059,031 10,283,796,217 

 

(c) Applicable tax rates 
The Company’s income tax rate is 20%.  The income tax computation is subjected to the review and 
approval of the tax authorities. 
 

(d) Tax losses 
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no tax losses was utilised (year ended 31 December 2019: VND 
6,928,096,260). 
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33. Basic earnings per share 
  The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was based on the profit 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of VND 52,843,302,851 (year ended 31 December 2019: profit 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of VND 47,521,553,006) and a weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding of 87,704,428 shares (year ended 31 December 2019: 69,999,510 shares), calculated as 
follows: 

(i) Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders  

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Net profit for the year  52,843,302,851 47,521,553,006 
   
  

 (ii) Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

 2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 69,999,510 69,999,510 
Effect of shares issued during the year 17,704,918  -  
   

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year  87,704,428 69,999,510 

 

 (iii) Basic earnings per share  

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Basic earnings per share 603 679 
   
 
The Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares at the reporting date.  
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34. Significant transactions with related parties   
In addition to the related party balances disclosed in other notes to the financial statements, the Company 
had the following significant transactions with related parties during the year:  
 
 Transaction value 

 
2020 
VND 

2019 
VND 

   
Phu Hung Far East Holding Corporation - shareholder   
Capital contribution 92,000,000,000 - 
Cash dividend 13,662,000,000 10,626,000,000 
   
An Thinh Development Limited - shareholder   
Capital contribution 98,000,000,000 - 
Securities custody fee - 3,087,017 
Share transfer fee - 65,494,450 
Cash dividend 5,373,441,150 2,139,441,150 
   
Phu Hung Insurance Corporation - related company   
Capital contribution 10,000,000,000 - 
Securities custody fee 5,637,752 3,321,040 
Interest expense 751,547  772,750 
Cash dividend 619,584,570 289,584,570 
Management fee of shareholder book 27,272,727 27,272,727 
Others 81,548,197 84,426,260 
   
Dong Bang Development Limited - shareholder   
Cash dividend 2,245,320,000 2,245,320,000 
Securities custody fee 22,949,892 25,268,760 
   
Freshfields Capital Corporation - shareholder   
Cash dividend 2,245,320,000 2,245,320,000 
Securities custody fee 22,949,892 25,268,760 
   
Vu Thai Investment Consulting Co., Ltd - shareholder   
Securities custody fee 39,109,001 42,172,132 
Cash dividend 3,826,258,590 3,826,258,590 
Interest expense 1,912,745 2,046,477 
Consultant fee - 42,909,091 
   
Remunerations of key management personnel   
Salaries and other benefits  2,939,251,625    2,842,025,375    
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35. Segment reporting 

(i) Business segments 
The Company comprises the main business segments: securities brokerage, securities trading, treasury activities and other activities.  
 
 

Code 
Securities  
brokerage 

VND 

Securities  
trading 
VND 

Treasury  
activities 

VND 
Others 
VND 

Total 
VND 

  
2020  
1.  Revenue from operating activities  01 66,455,020,536 7,121,462,202 140,664,468,458 2,016,844,082 216,257,795,278 
2.  Direct expenses  02 65,317,987,861 3,228,814,424 74,970,638,800 2,792,929,198 146,310,370,283 
3.  Depreciation and amortisation expenses  03  5,283,549 11,781,000 3,721,495,612 -    3,738,560,161 
4.  Allowance for diminution in value of 
investments  04 - 29,057,592 -    - 29,057,592 

5.  Allowance for doubtful debts  05 - - 487,676,269 - 487,676,269 
6.  Net other income  06 - - -    23,230,909 23,230,909 
       
Profit/(loss) before tax  
(07 = 01 + 06 – 02 – 03 – 04 – 05) 07 1,131,749,126 3,851,809,186 61,484,657,777 (752,854,207) 65,715,361,882 

       
       

As at 31 December 2020       
Segment assets  28,148,950,026 60,547,170,051 2,045,305,977,116 1,098,137,857 2,135,100,235,050 
Segment liabilities  372,083,448,327 2,250,887,085 766,529,799,819  807,185,996 1,141,671,321,227 
       
 
 

30.  Segment reporting (continued) 

(i)  Business segments (continued) 
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued) 

Form B09 – CTCK 
(Issued under Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC  

dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance) 

 

 
Code 

Securities  
brokerage 

VND 

Securities  
trading 

VND 

Treasury  
activities 

VND 
Others 
VND 

Total 
VND 

  
2019  
1.  Revenue from operating activities  01 50,542,043,973 1,523,389,675 146,862,525,500 2,849,740,754 201,777,699,902 
2.  Direct expenses  02 57,463,803,908 2,598,592,670 78,683,024,940 2,494,383,413 141,239,804,931 
3.  Depreciation and amortisation expenses  03 -    11,369,298 2,569,426,493 -    2,580,795,791 
4.  Reversal of allowance for diminution in value of 
     investments  04 -    (26,841,403) -    -    (26,841,403) 
5.  Allowance for doubtful debts  05 -    -    194,343,728 -    194,343,728 
6.  Other income  06 -    -    -    15,752,368 15,752,368 
       
Profit/(loss) before tax  
(07 = 01 + 06 – 02 – 03 – 04 – 05) 07 (6,921,759,935) (1,059,730,890) 65,415,730,339 371,109,709 57,805,349,223 

       
       

As at 31 December 2019       
Segment assets  25,676,048,489 4,113,748,478 1,646,062,783,636 981,310,545 1,676,833,891,148 
Segment liabilities  7,701,692,614 783,396,688 897,268,492,824 794,859,750 906,548,441,876 
       
 

(ii) Geographical segment 
All business activities of the Company are carried out in Vietnam (i.e. one single segment). 
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36. Commitments 

 Leases  
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as follow: 
 

 31/12/2020 
VND 

31/12/2019 
VND 

   
Within one year 16,265,771,623 7,312,686,090 
Within two to five years 44,419,435,143 4,999,235,088 
   

 60,685,206,766 12,311,921,178 

  

37. Corresponding figures 
Corresponding figures were derived from the balances and amounts reported in the Company’s financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019. 
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